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financed mainly by the Central Bank. It is expected that  Vou Ii,
members of the Loan and Sale Societies who held up their C¥4F XVIIL
produce for a better market effected savings to an appreciable

extent., The sense of independence from the unscrupulous
middlemen gained by recourse to transaction through the Loan

and Sale Societies is valued generally by the producers and

there ig therefore greater demand for the establishment of

similar loan and sale societies elsewhere.

The Udipi Agricultural and Industrial Society is: working Production
at Kalianptr in the centre of an extensive sugarcane growing gggiftalel
area. A departmental inspector was put in charge of the A
society, for supervising its business and maintaining the
accounts. The business of the society showed an increase both
in value and quantity of jaggery produced. Cathe worth
Rs. 6,800 was\crushed in 1933-84 and in 1934-35 the cost of
cane crushed rose to Rs. 12,160; and jaggery produced rose

from 8,940 maunds to 6,079 maunds in these years.

The movement has been in existence for 26 years, during Their
which co-operative societies started in the several parts of the benefits,
district have afforded increasing financial assistance to the
agriculturists, mainly to meet the annual expenses of cultivation
and to repay old debts.. Apart from other benefits which
are claimed by co-operators, with the starting of co-operative
societies, deserving persons have obtained loans at reasonable
rates of interest for productive purposes and for their legitimate
needs. The total amount of loans issued during 1934-35 by
agricultural societies was Rs. 6,18,636 and people who some
years ago paid interest at the rate of 15 to 20 per cent are
now able to obtain loans at 6% to 9 per cent per annum, so that
even the most sceptical persons must admit that to this
movement must go the credit of reducing the rates of interest
throughout the district and rescuing many respectable middle

- and labouring class people from the clutches of professional

money-lenders.

CHAPTER XIX.

~ GAZETTEER.
Amindivi Islands,’

#  Page 232, paragraph 1.—Add :—Byramgore, Permullee and
Cheriyapéni are other isolated reefs besides Bitra. Of these

1There is a special Gazetteer for the Laccadives and Minicoy written by
Mr. B. H. Ellis, I.C.8., and published by the Government Press, Madrag, in
1924 and the reader who may want detailed information about the Amindivi
group of islands is referred to that publication.

S.K.—32-a
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the first two are submerged and the last has sandbanks-on -its
north and east sides. Bitra, alone of all these reefs has a few
families of recent settlers in it.

The Laccadives stand on a common bank which nowhere is
deeper than 1,200 fathoms. This group of islands consists of
seventeer small banks which rise almost precipitously from this
common bank. Soundings just outside these islands show a
sheer drop from about 25 fathoms to 400 or 500 fathoms or
even more. On the seaward side, what is termed a reef-
platform slopes gradually, often in a series of terraces, from the
reef-flat until a depth of 20 fathoms is reached. Here a
precipitous drop commences. Soundings increase suddenly,
within perhaps not more than a ship’s length to 160 or 200
fathoms. This precipice lies on an average only 400 or 500
yards from the reef-flat and it is easy to see how dangerous the
islands are to approach and what difficult anchorages they
afford. There are in fact only one or two places on each reef
‘where a ship can safely anchor and even at these it is no
unusual occurrence for the anchor to slip off a terrace in six
fathoms into perhaps 20 fathoms. From a depth of about 200
fathoms the bottom slopes very much more gradually until the
level of the common bank is reached.

The lagoon is a shallow saucer-shaped depression. Its
depth is not usually more than two or three fathoms in these
islands. The southern end of the lagoon is sometimes much
silted up. In the deeper water of the lagoon great bosses and
beds of coral grow up from the bottom to within a foot or two
‘of the surface with a luxuriance unknown on most coral islands
where coral growths inside the lagoon are usually very rare.
‘Seen through a water-glass these masses of coral appear a
veritable wonderland of beauty, with fishes of marvellous
colouring darting in and out of their fairy grottoes. Itappears
to be probable that all the lagoons will in course of time fill up
through the combined action of the sea in depositing sand, and
of the shallow water corals. The island proper is u.sually a
narrow bank of sand piled up by the action of sea and wind
against the inner side of the eastern arc of the atoll. On all
the islands the sand is increasing steadily, but at varying
rates, on the lagoon side, and the islands are in consequence
growing. The growth is particularly marked at Kiltan where
the cutcherry which was once on the edge of the beach is now
several yards inland. : :

A few theories have been put forward to account for the
formation of coral islands, both based upon the now well-
known fact that reef—building corals only grow between a depth
of about 80 fathoms and the surface. Professor Stanley
Gardiner’s view which now holds the field is that the reefs and
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atolls have been formed by the upgrowth of corals from a-
common plateau, which the reef-building corals found at a
depth favourable to their existence. This plateau perhaps
represents portions of that old continent which is supposed to
have existed in the Jurassic and Cretaceous ages between India
and Southern and Central Africa and which, it is supposed,
was broken up by the mighty changes in early tertiary times to
which also the upheaval of the Himalayas was due. Actual
upheaval might have occurred about the same time that the
Malabar Coast below the ghats was raised above the sea.

Vou. I,
Crxap. XIX,

——

Page 2383, paragraph 1.—Add the following :-—Among Flora.

trees the coconut is found on all the islands. There are also a
few bread-fruit trees, banyans, tamarinds, the puvarasw
(Thespesia populnea), the punna (Calophylium inophyllum), the
wild almond (Terminalia catappa) and the horse-radish tree
(Moringa pterygosperma). Limes were formerly cultivated very
largely in Amini, but the trees have now nearly all died out.
On the beach in the uninhabited portions of the islands are
dense tlLickets of chonam, a small shrub, from which a sort of
tea is made, cheruthalam (Pemphis acidula), a bushy shrub
used for firewood and a few other varieties of shrubs. -The
keyam is a small tree found on the Amindivis from the wood of
which the tholepin of the oar is made. The screw pine grows
everywhere and with a luxuriance unknown on the main land ;
on the uninhabited islands its growth is from 20 to 30 feet
high. In the tottams on the islands little coarse paddy, ragi,
varagu, cholam, beans and sweet potatoes are grown, while
round their houses the people cultivate patches of chembu, a
kind of yam.

For details as to the various kinds of fish, ete., found here,
reference is invited to Mr. Ellis’ bock and to Prof. Gardiner’s
Tauna and Geography of the Maldives. Cowries of all kinds
from the small money cowry to the large handsome spotted
varieties, giant clams (Tridacha) and huge specimens of the
giant pinna are common on all the reefs. THermit crabs
{Coenobita) abound and almost every suitable dead shell on the
beach will be found occupied by one. Ocypode crabs, greyish
in colour, with the eyes placed at the end of short stalks, are
also very common and are caught for food. They grow to a
comparatively large size and the sand excavated from their
burrows gives the beach an extraordinary appearance, rather
as if countless pails of sand had been emptied at irregular
intervals all over the beach. Grapsoid crabs, barred green and
brown, will be found crawling over every rock. Fish are
abundant and many of the small kinds found in the lagoons
are wonderfully coloured. Bitra, when Sir William Robinscn
visited it in 1845, was the breeding ground of enormous

Zoology.
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numbers of sea birds, but none have been known to breed there
in more recent times. The erow is found only on Amini and
two other islands. It is said that a saint prohibited them from
ever coming to any of the other islands because one once
defiled his head.

- Paragraph 2.—Add:—Owing to their proximity to the
Indian coast the islands are influenced by both the monsoons.
The north-east monsoon becomes established about the end of
November and continues until March. During this period the
prevailing winds are northerly with long calms and but little or
no heavy weather. Often, however, the wind blows strongly
for days at a time from the east or north-east. The south-west
monsoon usually becomes definitely set towards the end of May
and continues regularly until September. During the months
intervening between the two monsoons, cyclonie storms or
hurricanes are liable to occur. Hurricanes are said to visit the
Laccadives at intervals of about 12 years; and the Amindivis
have suffered severely from them. The most disastrous storm
on tecord is that which burst upon them on 15th April 1847.
It burst upon Kiltan about an hour after sunrise on the

16th April..

The rainfall on the islands decreasses from south to north,
There is a rain gauge at Amini which records on an average just
below 60 inches of rain in'a year. The greater part of the rain
falls during the south-west monsoon in June and July. During
the rest of the year except November and December when the
northeeast monsoon brings heavy showers, there is but little
rain. The highest recorded rainfall at Amini for 24 hours has
been 10 inches. The temperature in the shade varies between
70° and 90° F. and on some of the islands the weather is so
unbearable that the people prefer to sleep at nightsin the open
on the beach. The mosquitoes are another source of great
discomfort to the islanders. Epidemics like cholera have been
common and, until the establishment of the dispensary, carried
off large numbers of vietims. 'The general diseases treated in
the Government dispensary are those relating to the stomach
and bowels, worms, diseases of the skin and eyes and rheumatism.
The last is probably the effect of constant explosure in fishing
or looking after the soaking of the coir. Ophthalmia and
other eye diseases were once the chief diseases, the effect of
the intense glare of the white coral sand, but they are now
less common because of skilled treatment and advice. Even
after the appointment of a midwife the people have remained
very ignorant and prejudiced and availed themselves of her
services but seldom. . The methods of their own midwives are
crude, and infantile mortality is in consequence very high.:
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Page 234, paragraph 2.—Add: —The ‘povfers of the .

Monegar have been gradually increased. He has police duties
and the duties of a civil judge and decides cases with the
assistance of Karanavars or the Khazi. -In certain classes of
civil cases he has still to associate with himself some of the
elders and get their opinions on record.

The islands have been declared “ Backward ” tracts and
were excluded from the operation of the TLegislative Councils.
Besides the annual inspection of the islands, a yearly scrutiny
of the accounts iy held in April or May. The Monegar
attends the Collector’s office at Mangalore for the check of his
accounts and collections and he is further required to remain
there during the fair weather months to assist in receiving and
paying for the shipments of coir. Inspections are held
annually by a gazetted revenue officer, generally a covenanted
civilian. In 1909 the same officer was asked to inspeet both
the South Kanara and the Malabar islands but the system has
since been discontinued.

 Page 235, paragraph 1.—Add :—Amini is one of the islands
_supposed to have been peopled first by the shipwrecked people
"~ who had left in search of Cheraman Perumil. The upper
classes called Kéyas here still claim to trace their descent from
Néyar or even Nambddiri families on the mainland and the
island is called in consequence a “ tarawad * island in distine-
tion to the other, or “ Melacheri” islands. The Melacheri
clags is said to be descended from Tiyyas and Mukkuvas who
settled on the islands later ag servants of the better classes.
The appomtment of two Melacheries as Muktessors in Amini
in 1985 is resented by the Kéyas as an infringement on then’
privileges.

Kiltan, Chetlat and Kadamat appear %o have been ocoupled_
only reoently, for Lieut. Bentley in 1795 found only about
100 people on each. of the two former islands, while Kadamat
was then still uninhabited and unplanted. These three
islands were probably occupied by settlers from Amini. The
people of Amini enjoyed at one time a priority over them,
traces of which may be seen in the custom only recently
abolished, of deciding cases on the other three islands with the
help of Amini Muktessors, and in the authority still’ possessed
by the Amini Khazi over the Naib Khazm of the other
islands.

The original Hindu islanders seem to have been converted
to Muhammadanism at some time probably in the fourteenth
century under the influence of Arab traders, Tradition
ascribes the conversion to an Arab saint named Ubaid-ulla
commonly known as the first MusSa,hya,r He is said to have
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_ ‘come to Amini first but being unable to convert the inkabi-
CHAP. XIX.

tants went to the other islands where he seems to have
succeeded, He returned to Amini three years later and this
time he was more successful and converted the whole island.
Jamath mosque at Androth which contains his tomb i3 held in
the greatest veneration in consequence. It is said that he did
not visit Kiltan, Chetlat or Kadamat but that the people of
these islands hearing of the conversion of Amini cameto that
island and were converted by the saint’s agent there. To

‘this circumstance popular tradition ascribes the present

subordination of the smaller islands to the Khézi of Amini in
religious affairs.

Paragraph 8.—Add :—The total population at the census of
1931 was 5,302 as against 8,722 in 1891. The people are all
Mussalmans and like the Mappillas of the neighbouring coast
of Hindu descent. They however display a better physical
development than the Méppillas of the mainland. There were.
only four Hindus in 1931, apparently goldsmiths from the
mainland for the islanders do not work on gold and precious
metals and 8o get their goldsmiths from the mainland who
return home after two or three years with substantial earnings=~

The islanders all belong to the Shafi school of the Sunni
seot and are very strict in their religious observances and have
a great reputation for orthodoxy. Each island has generally
three public mosques to which all the islanders resort on
particular occasions. These are the Jamath, Moidin and Ujira
mosques. There are also several private mosques out of all
proportion in numbers to the inhabitants, ‘each with its little
tank and grave-yard. Some of the richer families on  Amini
have small private mosques for women to which women of the
neighbouring houses come, the Imam in these mosques being
also a woman.

For a description of the Zikkar, a curious religious practice
by the islaniders in homour of a Muslim Saint see Hilg’
QGazettéer. Mr. Seshadri, I.C.S., says in regard to it in his

- inspection report of 1983; “ Except self-hypnotism induced
by faith and suggestion, the unexplored reserves of which are

charged with potentialities aught of which we know not, there
is no other explanation I can think of.”” For the origin of the
various divisions among the people, their marriage customs and
birth and death ceremonies, see Mr. R. H. Ellis’ Gazetteer.
Divoree is very common and in most cases it appears to be
the woman who wants it. If the wife does not want the hus-
band, be is bound to divorce her, but may take back all the
clothing and jewellery which he has given her and also a
portion of the bir. If the husband wants the divorce, he has
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to relinquish to the wife all that he may have given her, CVOL;%(-
including the mahar or dowry paid by him at the time of ~F4%- 2%
marriage. Either party can divorce for any reason whatever. °
With these facilities for divoree on both sides, very few men

have more than one wife and there are very few men or woinen

who have not been married and divorced several times.

Page 236, paragraph 1, line 1.—For “ 2,150 7, substitute Amini,
“ 2500 in 1951, ” | |

Add at the end of the paragraph :—The island is situated
about 190 miles south-west from Mangalore and is the head-
quarters of the monegar and sub-assistant surgeon. It has an
area of 622 acres and has a very small lagoon on the west.
The beach on all sides is free from any bank of coral debris.
There are good anchorages off the reef on the west and four
main boat entrances on the western side.

The houses which are scattered all over the island are con-
structed of slabs of coral limestone. The cutcherry is a small
two-roomed building with a porch situated about 150 yards
from the sea near the middle of the western face of the island.
Close beside it on the south are the Monegar’s quarters while
e little distance to the east are the dispensary, the sub-assistant
surgeon’s quarters, the school and meteorological station. On
a platform on the sea-shore opposite the cutcherry are mounted
two old cannons said to have been taken from the “ Mahomed,”
a pilgrim ship wrecked at Amini in 1854. Tracesof what was
onece a Portuguese fort ave visible just north of the cutcherry.
The Portuguese were all poisoned as the result of a conspiracy
hatched in the mosque, still known as the Pambupalli, The
school had a strength of 129 in 1935 of whom 19 were girls.

There are a few rich families but the majority of the people
are poor and destitute, Omn occasions of drought the islanders
join and re-thatch the Nercha-Palli as it is believed that such a
procedure will bring in the desired rain. Kadamatis six miles
to the north and is clearly visible. The Amini islanders obtain-~
ed some control over Kadamat and refused to allow settlers
there to hold trees of their own or to build their own odams.
Even now the trees on the southern portion of Kadamat are
owned by certain rich Amini families and Amini Muktessors
claim the right to sit in cutcherry at Kadamat while the
Kadamat Muppans have to stand there.

Paragraph 2.— For “ 338 "’ read ““ 907 in 1981 ”,~—For the Kadamat.
third sentence substitute :—~The island is five miles 150 yardslong
by 600 yards wide at the broadest point, along the eastern side
of a magnificent lagoon 7} miles long by 1% miles wide.
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Add at the end of the paragraph :—The main boat efitrances
are at the southern end of the reef. A high ridge of sand runs

- down the western side of the island. The southern third of

the island which belongs to the people of Aminiis uninhabited
and was originally covered with thick jungle and contained
few coconut trees but it has nmow been fully planted.” The
few houses in the island are scattered round the cutcherry on
the western side about two miles from the southern end. Except
for a few small huts, the northern half of the island is unin-
habited and portions still remain unplanted. It isless fertile
than the southern half but is in the possession of the Kadamat
islanders themselves. The people are all Melacheries and very
poor.

In 1907 the Amlm Khézi’s authority over the Kadamat
Khézi began to be openly guestioned. The dispute aroused
bitter feelings on Kadamat and led to a orop of oriminal cases
and appeals. The Amini Khazi claimed that the Kadamat
Khézi was and had always been his deputy and that as such
his approval was required to the appointment of the Naib Kh4zi
of Kadamat. The Monegar decided in favour of the Amini
Khézi and his decision was confirmed by the Inspecting Officer
in 1908 and by the Collector. But the people refused to accept
this decision and in 1909 when the Amini Khézi performed the
Kutba in the Kadamat mosque as being the principal Kh4ézi of
Kadamat in accordance with the decision, the people refused to
attend and the Kadamat Khézi resigned. The islanders then
erected a cadjan mosque and appointed one of themselves to
read the Kutba. The Monegar prohibited this but several
islanders disobeyed him and many more seemed inclined to set
authority at defiance. Feelings ran high for some years but a
satisfactory compromise has been arranged by which the
Kadamat congregation makes the selection but the candidate
has to obtain the Amini Khézi’s approval before he is finally
appointed by the Collector. There is a school in the island
(strength 60) with two teachers and a night class is also held

7 for the elders.

The lagoon provides excellent fishing and the Amml
islanders regularly resort to it for that purpose. .

Paragraph 8.—For the first two sentences, substitute :—
Kiltan, population 1019 in 1931. This is situated some 30
miles north-east of Amini. The island is 2 miles 100 yards
long by about 650 yards wide at its broadest pmnt and hag an
area of 897 acres.

Add at the end as a separate paragraph :—The lagoon is
approximately the same length as the island and about 950
yards wide, The island is steadily extending by accretion of
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sand’on the lagoon side, so much so that the cutcherry which
was once on the edge of the beach is now some 50 yards
inland. There is a boat entrance through the reef off the
northern point of the island but as the reef is left high and dry
at low tide this can only be used during high water. The bar
requires clearing by the islanders, who keepa sort of light
house by burning a lantern on the top of a dead coconut tree
several feet high. There is a good landing place on the sea
beach on the eastern side of the island just opposite the cut-
cherry but this also is rather difficult at low water, although
the reef in this position is not actually exposed, There is no
unoccupied land on the island and no jungle. The people who
are all Melacheries, though not so industrious asthe Chetlat
islanders, are better off and there are few destitute persons
among them. There is a school on the island (strength 49)
which lacked Government recognition in 1985,

Page 237.—For the first two sentences substitute :—
Chetlat, Population 876 in 1931 lies some 35 miles almost due
north of Amini and is a long, narrow island about 1 mile, 1,150
yards long by 650 yards wide at the broadest point, 255 acres
in extent and occupies the eastern arc of the atoll.

Add at the end of the paragraph :—Along the whole eastern
side of the island is a wide belt of coral debris, evidently the
result of some severe storm. This belt broadens out at the
south till it covers the whole southern end of the island, The
reef is more perfectly circular than is the case in the other
islands. The lagoon is three-fourths of a mile wide. The best
anchorage for steamers is off the northern end of the reef.

The soil is poor and the yield of coconut trees in con-
sequence not so good as on the other islands. The people who
are all Melacheries are poor but at the same time the thriftiest
and most hard-working of all the islanders. The island itself
is a model of neatness ; no rubbish or debris will be found lying

_about. Every fallen nut and every fallen coconut leaf is utilized
for some purpose. The result of this industry is shown in
the large export of plaited cadjans to the mainland. The
average Chetlat coir is equal to the first-class coir of the other
islands and Chetlat first-class coir is considerably superior to
any coir produced on any of the other islands. The islanders
are said to climb trees like monkeys, *“ if anything more swiftly
and more surely, without loops of ropes round their feet.”

The cutcherry is about half way down the western side of
the island, near the shore. " It is a small incommodious building
A school was opened close by in 1929 and it had a strength of
58 pupils in 1985. In the same part of the island ‘are the
seattered houses of the inhabitants, the northern and southern
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ends being uninhabited and not very fully planted with soco-
nut trees. South of the cufcherry on the eastern side of the
island is the tomb of Carpenter Primrose of the Vizier, wrecked
on Cheriyapéani in 1853, who died on Chetlat while waiting to
be taken off. The roughly carved stone was erected by the
crew of the “ General Simpson ” wrecked on Chetlat in 1863.

Paragraph 2.— Add at the end of the paragraph the follow-
ing :—This island situated some 43 miles north-west of Amini
and 30 miles from Chetlat is the most northerly of the Laccadive
islands. Although several attempts have been made to settle
families from the other islands upon i, it is still not inhabited
throughout the year, for in 1985 the five families of grantees
of coconut trees on the island were known to leave it before
the outbreak of the monsoon. It is about 1,150 yardslong by
200 yards broad at the widest point and some 26 acres in extent.
It is situated at the north-east corner of the reef. The island is
extending gradually on the northern shore and along the

‘eastern arc of the reef, but is at the same time being washed

away to the south inside the lagoon. Its whole shape appears.
to have altered very considerably within the last fifty years.
The reef encloses a magnificent lagoon, 7 miles long by 8 miles
wide.

There are about 1,200 coconnt trees on the island of which
some 350 are in bearing. Kxcluding 75 trees set apart for the
use of pilgrims visiting the island (of which 82 had been since
washed away) the remainder are leased out for three years at
a time, with & condition requiring the planting of a certain
number of young trees each year. There is demand for land
and trees here, but the Monegar has been instructed to insist
on the grantees living permanently on the island on pain of
resumption of the grant. A small shrine contains the tomb of
a Pir or saint to which pilgrimages are frequently made from
the other islands.

* Coondapoor Taluk.’

Page 2388, paragraph 4, first three sentences.—Substi-
tute :—The Coondapoor taluk is the most northern taluk in
South Kanara. It is bounded on the north by North Kanara ;
on the east by Mysore, the line of boundary being, except in
a few places, the summit of the Western Ghats; on the south
by the Udipi and Karkal taluks and on the west by the
Arabian Sea. The area of the taluk is 619 squaTe miles.

* For historical notes in the Talnk Gazetteers in this chapter the Hditor is
wuch indebted to that excellent school history of the district in Kanarese by
Mr. M.G. Aigal (1023), : : ‘



343

Paragraph 8.—Substitute for the first sentence :—The taluk
has the largest area (201 square miles) of reserved forests in
the district except Puttdr which has a little over double this
area under them; and on the laterite plateau and slopes to the
north of the ta.luk there arelarge numbers of catechu trees
(Acacia catechu and Acacio sundra). ‘

Page 239, paragraph 1, third sentence.—Substitute ‘—
The average annual rainfall at Coondapoor (for the sixty-one
years 1870 to 1930) was 14160 inches and at Baindiir (from
1901 to 1930) 153'43 inches. Itis more in the interior and at
the foot of the ghats, as the rain-charged clouds get closer to
the mountains and are sharply intercepted by them

Paragraph 8, line 2.—For “ Taluk Board ” frecod “ distriet
board.”

Last sentence ending in page 240,— Subslitute :—The coast
road is kept in a fair condition and is now very much used

notwithstanding the numerous rivers and backwaters that are .

unbridged. Arrangements have been made to ferry passen-
gers, goods and even cars and carts across them by boats
~and jungars. An efficient service of motor buses runs along
most of these roads so that all the important villages in-the
taluk can be reached without much dlfﬁculty from its head-

quarters.

Page 240 paragraph 5, line 1.—For “ Head Assistant
Collector’s’ * read “ Sub-Collector’s

Line 3.—Delete the words “ (salary Rs. 150) .

Fourth sentence.—Substitute :—There is no separate circle
1nspeotor of police for this taluk, the inspector of Udipi being
also in charge of this taluk. There are police stations at
Coondapoor and Baindir and outposts at Kollir and Sankara-
nirdyana. There is not much crime in the taluk.

Page 241, paragraph 1.—Add :-—Details ‘as to popula-
tion, religion and literacy are found in Tables I, V, VIIIand
XXIV of this volume.

Pamgmph 9.—Add :—Details as to the various Crops grown
in the taluk and the extent of land on which they are raised
can be found in Table IX of this volume.

Paragmph 4,—Add ;:—The agricul’oura;l stock of this taluk
as found at the census of 193435 was as follows :—

Bullocks Voo .. 26,078
He-buffaloes ... = ... .. 15486
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Cows ... 25418 .
Bulls and heifers under fouor

years .. 23,351
She-buffaloes = ... e 4770
Young buffaloes ... e 2,846
Sheep and goats 515
Horses and ponies .. 3
Carts ... .. 1439
Ploughs .. 24,188
Boats v . 1,979

Page 242, paragraph 1.—Add —Population in 1981 had
more than doubled —8923 (7128 Hindus, 997 Muhammadans
and 798 Christians). The hospital is now under an assistant
surgeon paid by Government. There is a district munsif’s
court here having jurisdiction over the whole taluk. The
board high school is one of the best in the district and some of
its old boys have rigen to high positions in Government service.
The travellers’ bungalow stands opposite the sub-collector’s
office and near it are the taluk office and the munsif’s court.
There is & Shandy here every Saturday, which is well
attended. 'There is a panchayat board to look after the civie
affairs of the town and it runs an elementary school. 'The
Sisters of the Apostolic Carmel maintain an orphanage with a
well-attended girl school attached to it. This and the board
higher elementary school for girls cater for the education of
girls in this place. On Tippu’s redoubt and facing the river
is a mosque built by him which receives a tasdic of Rs. 808 a
year and in front of the high school an ldga for the Faithful
to pray on important days. The fort (of which ruins exist now)
was built in the middle of the seventeenth century for the
protection of Sivappa Néiyaka’s kingdom against Portuguese
incursions ; the same reason accounts for the building of the
Bennagiri fort there.

Poragraph 2.— Add:—The population in 1981 was 3652
(8073 Hindus, 417 Muhammadans, 162 Christians and no Jains).
The village is no longer a sea-port. The outer walls of the old
town are still visible in parts, as also an inner fort with a deep
moat all round. This inner fort is overgrown with trees and
shrubs. There are no Jains in this place and it looks probable
that the temple to their chief Tirt4nkara Adi-nitha was, after
the downfall of the Jains, converted into a Hindu temple;
and one of the seven water gates led to what was once the
Jain quarter and is still called Basthi-kéri. There is a Munro-
well, apparently constructed early in the nineteenth century
when Sir Thomas Munro was in charge of the distriet; and he
i8 believed to have fixed his camp in the grounds now owned
by the Protestant mission. Big vessels used to go direct to
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Basrar until recent years, but with the recedence of the sea,
the port has had to be removed to Lower Basrir as it was
called then, that is the present town of Coondapoor. The
Portuguese had been given permission to build. a fort here in
1631 under their treaty with Vira Bhadrappa Nayaka (1629-
1645), the Ikkéri king. When the Mahrattas under Sivaji
plundered Goa, several Christians took refuge in Basrir, which
was also pillaged by Sivdji. Bhadrappa's successor Sivappa
Nayaka (1645—1660) had to capture the fort of Coondapoor
when the Portuguese gave trouble.- Sémasekhara Nayaka
(1715~1740) visited Basrir early in his reignin 1722 and later
about its close in 1737. Dévariya IT of Vijianagar (1419
1446) gave endowments to the Kétéswara and Mahalingéswara
temples at Basrir and also built a choultry there. Omne of his
successors Mallikarjuna (1446—1467) gave another grant to
Mahalingéswara temple. An inscription of his successor
VirGpaksha (1467—78) is also found here. Krishnadéva Raya

built and endowed an Anna-chatram or choultry. An inserip-

tion in Shantéswara temple shows that in 1584 Tirumala Rays
gave an endowment to Tirumala-déva and three inscriptions
of Sadisiva Raya (1542-—65) are found here. Three big tanks
were attached to the temples and these are still used by
villagers for irrigation and for bathing. -~ A Brahmin of Basrir
by name Chennakésavayya or Chennappayya of Halsnddu-
mane who was a kinsman of Méidappayya, son of Sdrapayya,
a karnic under the Xeladi chiefs Sémasékhara’ and
Chepnammaji (who were subordinates of the Vijayanagar
kings) built the golden stupe over the Mahibaléswara temple
at Gékarnam in North Kanara and built the Mukhamantapam
in front and repaired the inner sanctuary or garbhagraham.
He also built an agraharam in Gokarnam and gifted it to
Brahmins, so says an iuscription at Goékarnam. Their family
house is still at Basrir with a small shrine in it to which wor-
ship is still offered, and representatives of the family ave
still found in Halasa. '

Page 248, paragraph 1.—Add :—The records of the port
show that it was in existence in 1862. The port is now open
only to coasting trade, and the local merchants are asking for
it to be opened to foreign trade also. The bar at the mouth of
the river is known as the Kiralva, and Kéte-bagal is the name
»f the village close to it. There are the remains of a forl said
to have been rebuilt by Tippu Sultan close under a laterite
hill overlooking the sea on which there is a ruined temple to

S4méswara. Vessels of more than fifteen tons which call at

this port have to anchor outside the bar for there are submerged
roeks outside the entrance to it. Shirdr, a coast village aboub
three miles north is included in the port limits. There are
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two Government wharves at Bainddr and four .private
wharves at Shirar; of the former one is forlanding kerosene
oil and the other for exporting salted fish, and all the others
for firewood. The trade of Bainddr is wlth the ports in
Bombay Presidency, Malabar and South Kanara; firewood and
forest produce are sent to Bombay ports and Ma.nga.lore and
fish to Mangalore and the Malabar ports. There are half-a-
dozen firms and the total value of imports and exports in
1933-34 was Rs. 43,000 of the former and Rs, §8,000 of the
latter., There are no Jains here, the few in the taluk living
in the Honndr-mégéne on the plateau above the ghats. In the
middle of the village is an ancient Siva temple with inserip-
tions dated 1507 and 1523 of the times of Narasimha Raya
and Krishnadéva Réya of Vijianagar who were apparently
overlords of this part of Kanara at the time; it is recorded in
the former that Keladi Basvappa Riya Wodeyar had been made
chief of Barkdr at the time with instructions to restore an inn
founded here by certain merchants of Nagara.

Paragraph 2, first line.—For ‘ Population 1,011” read
“ Population 1,268 in 1981.”

Paragraph 8, first line.—For “ Population 1,568 7 read
‘“ Population 2, 795 in 1981.”

Add at end : :—It gives its name to a community of Brahmins
and lies three miles south of Coondapoor on the coast road.
There is a temple to Kétilingéswara which receives a fasdic of
Rs. 2,600 a year from Government and owns besides some
landed properties. A bath in the sea about a mile from this
place on certain holy days in the year is said to give the bather
special religious merit. There is a fine large tank a few yards
to the north of the temple in which erocodiles are said to exist;
they are said not to have harmed any bathers till now. This is
one of the seven holy places in Kanara, of which three more are
found in this taluk—Xollidr, Sankara,naraya,na and Kumba-Asi.

Paragraph 4, lines 1 and 2.—For “ Populatlon 748 ” read
“ Population 4663 in 1931.”

Paragraph 5.—Substitute —Hosangadi, at the foot of the
ghats, is four miles west of the Mysore border. This was
the seat of the Honneya-Kambli chiefs who were subordinates
of the Rajahs of Nagar (Bedndre). The place came into
prominence in the last two Mysore Wars when General Mathews
attacked the Mysoreans at this place.

There are the ruins of an old fort here. There was an
inner fort surrounded by a moat and an outer wall. Two gates
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on the east lead into the outer enclosure one of Whlch was the
water-gate. Portions of these two sets of walls can still be

- seen, some with musket holes in them. The tank to the east

of the fort has rough stone revetment on all sides and itg water
is used for irrigation of the lands to the south of the old fort.
To the east of the tank the town must have extended in olden
days for there are numerous basements of houses and circular
wells spread over an extent of 2 or B'square miles. The old
ghat road, very largely used in the last two Mysore Wars, lay
a few yards to the east of this tank and though supplanted by
the new one, is traceable by the existence of two parallel lines
of huge trees, especially the diupa trees one on either side of

Among the ancient temples here are the Virdpiksha
temple which contains several inscriptions on stone slabs, the
Sintéswara temple, two Venkataramana temples and one Vittal
temple

The population mainly consists of Konkanis, Kudubis,

Bants and a few Brahmins. The only Sarasvat family here is

an ancient one which claims that its ancestors as village
headmen helped, General Mathews when he was camping here
prior to his la,unchlng an attack on the Mysore army. Five
miles from Hosangadi is the village of Kamalashile noted for its
- temple to Brahmi-Durg4-Paraméswari and to the small cave in
a laterite hill about half a mile from the temple. The bed of
the cave slopes downwards and stops at a well called Négathir-
tham. Being dark, the cave is the abode of numerous bats,
but it is possible to go as far as the well with the aid of lighted
torches, and the water for use in the temple during its car-
festival is said to be taken from this well.* The temple owns
lands and pays a kist of Rs. 8,000 and gets a tasdic of Rs. 500
from Government. The pujari is a Kéta-Brahmin and during
Sankramanam and car-festivals in April several pilgrims from
above the ghats attend. :

There is a stone bull on the road just outside the village of
Hosangadi and its head has been cut off. Either it wasin a
Lingayat temple (as a Lingdyat matam-site and well are found
close by) or was in a Siva temple. . There was a large Kudubi

_population in this magane formerly (Adi-malai magane), but

with the stoppage of cultivation on hill slopes, they have had .

to migrate coastwards in search of agricultural work, and now
only a few families are left here. Six miles from Hosangadl
and three miles from the district border is a peak of the western
ghats called Balebaré on which the Mysore Government has

erected a platform reached by a flight of steps and: from this.

* In Kéridi village, 14 milas from Hosangadi is a similar cave but smaller
wwh an 1dol in it surrounded by water for the greater part of tho yeoar,
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platform the best view cam be had of the country below the
ghats and the sea. ,

Para mph 6, line 1.—Substitute :—Population 4 099 in
1931 of whom 3 898 were Hindus.

: Pamgm h 7.—~Add —The populatlon remained almost the
same (in 1981) 2,785 of whom 2,758 were Hindus, 21 Muham-
madans and 6 Christians. The police station has been
reduced to the status of an outpost. A sub-registrar’s office
and a rural dispensary were newly opened here. This is the
headquarters of a forest ranger, and the higher elementary
school newly opened here attracts numerous. children from
the neighbouring villages. The local temple is dedicated to
both Siva and Vishnu (Sankara and Nardyana), is one of the
Saptaksketms or seven important holy places in Tulu-nidu,
and is referred to in the Skandapurdna. There is a large bell
(weight 1,860 1bs. and slightly cracked) in the front yard of the
temple bea,rmg in Portugnese the following inscription :—

EITAPELOMESTRE

BODYV

1743.

with the figures of Jesus Christ and the Blessed Virgin on its
surface and on opposite sides.. The temple trustee says that
this had been a church bell and had been handed over to-the
temple by Tippu’s officers when they destroyed the churches in
the neighbourhood and that the bell had belonged to the
church at Petrie. This bell when rung can be heard to a
distance of five miles, and is said to be used during worship.
At the entrance of the inner prakara was a hall called Puréna-
mantapam with very fine images in wood in the ceiling,
depicting the stories in the Purinas, but the mantapam had
to be pulled down a few. years ago as it was in a dangerous
condition. The wood-work (a small part of which has been
eaten by white ants) has been all taken out and preserved in
the first round of the temple for use, if possible, when the hall
is rebuilt.. There are a few 1nscr1pt10n§ in this temple one of
which records that Sémasékhara Néyaka renovated it in
S.S. 1485 (1563 A.D.).  The village is called Kréda after a
rishi of that name who lived close by and worshipped both Siva
and Vishnu.

Paragraph 8.—Add —-Popula.tlon in 1931 was 2,770, of
whom 2,617 were Hindus and 147 Muslims.

Page 244, pamgmph 1 -—Add ---The thlck forest at the foot
called Ambévana and said to be the abode of a goddess called
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Durga, has not been explored and is said to be impenetrable,
The Huli-deva or Tiger God is worshipped mainly by the hill
tribes.

Pafra,g'faph 2.—Add .—Population in 1931 was 1,294,
There is a large colony of Hindu and Christian fishermen in the
village. : | '

Paragraph 8.— Substitute —Gangoli; population 5,376 in
1931 of whom 3,792 were Hindus, 1,095 Muhammadans and
489 Christians, is the village at the mouth of the river of that
name on the north bank and almost opposite to Coondapoor
from which it is about a mile and a half away across the
estuary. Tippu had a dock here. L

The port of Coondapoor which lies in this village is the most
northerly port but one on the west-coast of this Presidency.
The custom-house is at Gangdli and easy water communieation
is available from this port to the interior parts of the taluk so
that forest and other inland produce are easily transported to it
from the interior. There is a light-house (500 candle power)
at K6di on the Coondapoor side, and nearly a mile from the
custom-house and close to the bar. There are rocks on the
Gangéli side but these ave not dangerous to navigation as there
is a depth of 5 to 10 feet of water over the bar. Steamers
generally anchor two to three miles out ; but native eraft up to
80 tons draught can enter the river through the bar. The
currents are, however, very strong in the river within the port
limits and great caution has to be exercised while navigating
especially when there is much shipping in the port. There are
seven wharves of which two belong to Government. The
B.L.S.N. Company has erected a jetty for the convenience of
passengers to their steamers. There is sufficient depth of water
in the wharves to enable shallow draught vessels to ship or
discharge their cargo on to them direct.

The original port was at Basrtr, 4 miles up the river. It
was an important port during Portuguese times and during the
reigns of Hyder and Tippu and it carried on a busy trade with
the western countries. Rice, coconuts, -sugar-cane, ginger,
cashewnuts, timber and firewood are produced in the taluk
and the ohief manufactures are coir, coir-yarn, jaggery, copra
and cinnamon-oil. Several tile factories and rice-mills have
sprung up in recent years on the banks and mouths of several
rivers in this district so that we have now fewer imports of
tiles, but paddy is imported from outside to feed the rice-mills
in the taluk as local produce is insufficient. The B.I.S.N.
steamers call here regularly on Sundays going towards Manga-
lore and on Tuesdays and Saturdays going to Bombay.. Goa
and the ports of Cutch gnd Kathiawar are the chief Indian
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orts with trade comnection Wl‘bh Gang6li, and vessels from
the ports of Arabia bring in dates. Kerosene-oil is imported
from Goa and petrol from Bombay, and the Burmah-Shell
Company has a depot here. Nineteen Indian merchants and

- firms deal in timber, jaggery, coir, fish and firewood. The

‘ Kumbha-asi.

Kollfiru.

value of imports in 1984-35 was Rs. 2,875 foreign and
Rs. 10,87,459 coasting, but of exports, there was nothing to
forelgn countries while those to inland ports were worth
Rs. 8,41,885, with a total customs revenue of Rs. 8,480, There
was & church in this village in the seventeenth century but it
was destroyed by Tippu Sultan and the present church was
built long afterwards

Add at the end of the chapter the following :—EKumbha-

" asi, also known as Kumbha-Kési, is a revenue village, five

miles to the south of Coondapoor noted for its shrine to
Mzhalingéswara. This shrine ‘i3 surrounded by a tank and
phja is merely offered to a shallow pit in which there is water
which they call Bagirathi (or Ganges) The temple is claimed
by its priests to have existed in all the four yugams. At the
close ‘of third yuga, there was an asura, or giant by name
Kumbha who prevented Goutama-muni from having his tapas.
At his request Bhima killed the asura by means of an asi or.
sword which he obtained by doing puja to an Anai (or elephant)
on the Nigdchala by which he obtained a sword. The asura
was killed and the muni was pleased. The right side of the
tank is called Strya and the left Chandra-pushkarani. The
pujaris are Shivallis. There are on the banks of the tank
ghrines to Chennakésava, Lakshmindriyana and Suryanérédyana
and a branch of the Séde-mutt. The muni’s yaga-kundam is
said to be the present tank from the bottom of which they say
that vibhuli ash can still be obtained.

~ Kolluru (ancient name Kélapura), populamon 457 in 1981
is one of the most important places of pilgrimage on the
west-coast attracting pilgrims from all over India. The
temple is dedicated to Sri-Mik4dmbika and stands on a spur of
the great Kodach4dri peak. The principal idol or Milasthan is
a linga on which appears a line of yellow colour which divides
the head into two unequal halves, the greater representing the
three goddesses Umé, Lakshmi and Saraswati and the smaller
Brahma, Vishnu and Mahéswara. Tt is said that a rishi ealled
Kéla was doing fapas here and was obstructed by a rakshasa
(demon) who was also doing great fapas to  get his desires
fulfilled: To prevent him getting his desires fulfilled Sakthi
made the Rakshasa dumb (meaning Mika) and when God
appeared before him he could ask for nothing. He got enraged
soon after and began troubling Kéla-rishi who thereafter
pmyed to the Sakthi (or goddess) for dellverance and she
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appeared and killed the demon. At Kéla’s request Sakthi
stayed here to be worshipped perpetually and so did the Gods,
in the form of a common Lingam. Later Sri Sankarichirya
appeared here leading Sri Saraswathi with a view to finding s
place for enshrining her. He stopped at this temple, fixed a
Srichakram and on it installed the idol of Mdkambiks which is
the central idol behind the lingam: On either side of this are
idols to Kali or Pédrvathi and Saraswati. The place where
this sage stayed and did penance and the gate by which he left
are at the back of the Milasthan and to the north respectively.
‘Votaries to the temple are allowed the privilege of gitting
at that place and passing under that gate for a fee. The
temple has been patronized by ancient Hindu kings and
several parts in it are still believed to contain valuable treasure.
This was the State temple for the Nagara or Bednére Raujas
and many of the jewels now adorning the ido! are said to have
been presented by them and by their overlords of Vijayanagar.
During the Mahratta raids in this district in the eighteenth
century, these freebooters are believed to have carried away
gold, silver and gems worth £150,000. Even so late as 1894
a Punjabi robber is said to have come and resided here for two
months posing as a Brahmin and after learning the inner
working of the temple collected a band and raided the temple
treagury. Fortunately he was arrested with the booty within
a few days in Lahore and brought to book. The temple Jewels
are made of gold and set with precious stones and are still
worth several lakhs, and include two pieces of emerald, perhaps
the largest of their kind in India, the bigger atleast as large
as the palm of the hand and worth Rs. 1,50,000. There is a
necklace of gold coins, most of them Buropean, of the eighteenth
and early nineteenth centuries. The temple gets a tasdic of
over two thousand rupees from the local Government and a few
small sums from the Bombay and Mysore Governments and from
the Sringéri mutt. Close by is a Chandramouléswara temple
built by the first Sankardchérya whose mutt pays for its daily
worship. - _ : _ _ :

There are some inscriptions in the temple two of which state
that Pandari Déva Wodeyar and Bukka Déva, Kambli kings of
Honnér, gave in 1522 the-first endowments to this Gudda-
dévata or hill-goddess. The date of the second is net clear,
but it must be sometime later. Venkatappa Néyak of Ikkéri
(1582 ‘to 1629) after he had subdued the ‘conutry around
Visited the temple and made extensive repairs to it in 1616 and
gave endowments. The fine brass-plated deepasthambam here
and in front of the Mahalingéswara temple at Basrar must have
been set up by him as he is said to have introduced special
worship by lights" in all temples in his kingdom. The karnik
of the Nagar Rajahs, the- Brahmin Midappayya of Halasinddu
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referred to under Basrir seems to have also helped in the

renovation and there is a special shrine to a lingam installed by
“him in the compound. Venkatappa’s son Virabhadra (1629-
48) appears from copper-plate grants to have made an endow-
_.ment to this templein 1641. Sivappa Néyaka’s son Bhadrappa

(1661-68) also visited the temple and gave endowments as
also queen Chennaméji (1672-1698) some years later. The
Angria freebooters who invaded the country for plunder are
said to have carried away from this temple jewels worth
4 lakhs of pagodas

. Karkal Taluk.

The district had originally only five taluks. A sixth taluk
was formed with Mudbidri as the headquarters in 1910 which
included in it 41 and 68 villages taken respectively from the
Uppinangadi and Mangalore taluks. Two years later- this
arrangement was found unsuitable and abandoned and a new
taluk with Kérkal as headquarters was constituted with 68
villages of the Mangalore taluk (which had been included in
the Mudbidri taluk) and 42 villages of the Udipi taluk. The
total area of the taluk is 629 square miles and its boundaries
are on the north, Coondapoor taluk of this district; on the
east, the top line of the Western Ghats and Mysore; on the
south, Mangalore and Puttir taluks and on the west Mangalore
and Udipi taluks. This is one of the two inland taluks in the
district and its greatest length north to south is 55 miles and
its greatest breadth east to west is 25 miles.

The eastern part of the taluk is full of long forest clad
spurs from the Western Ghats and is covered with dense
vegetation and a bewildering variety of fauna and flora
changing to scrub jungle as we approach the west into an
undulating country of broken laterite studded with scattered
hills and interspersed with ravines and valleys containing
numerous plantations of areca palms. There are good
specimens of these palms in the forest-fringed vllla.ges of
Durga, Mala and Kabbinéle.

The upper reaches of Palguni (or Gurptr river), the Mulki
or Séandr river, the Udyavara-Holé, the Swarndnadi. (the
Ma,disal-Holé)_ and the Sitanadi lie in this taluk, as all these
rivers rise in the Western Ghats, its eastern boundary. The
Miilki or Sanur river, the Udyavara-Hole and the Madisal-Hol4,
all take their sources from one or other of the spurs of the
‘Western Ghats in this taluk.

The surface of these laterite hills and the numerous valleys
enclosed  between them contain broken laterite and red

: Ierrugmous loam There are also pa.tches of gra,mte rock
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in the plateau. Boulders of rock and upheavals of granite Vou. IL.
gneiss are used for quarrying black stone. The valleys in the 0747 *IX.
midst of laterite elevations are studded with patches of wet '
cultivation which depend for their irrigation on rains for their

first crop and the springs and .canals drawn from bunded

streams and hills and Holés for subsequent crops. Soon after

the rains the surface of the taluk presents a most pleasing
landscape, but with the coming in of summer, the tall grass of = -

the lands under kumaki cultivation get parched up or are cut

down or burnt, with the result that the whole countryside

barring valleys covered with areca-palms presents an arid and

parched up appearance. The out crop of gneiss in the neigh-
bourhood of the taluk headquarters are particularly marked.

This is the third taluk in point of area under forests (152 Foxests.
square miles), Puttir and Coondapoor taluks having respectively
416 and 200 square miles of forests within their limits. Besides
the reserves there are a few inferior forests under the control
of panchayats and numerous patches of forest cultivation in
private estates near which there are plots of varying extents
under wet cultivation. The cultivators - get their leaf manure
from certain preseribed limits in the Teserves for a small fee and
from kumakis. :

The taluk does not contain the same mileage of roads as Communica-
Putttr or Késaragéd. The roads are under the district board b°n*
and the principal of them and their lengths within the taluk
are glven below :— -

MILES.
1. The Agumbé ghat road from MlJaJ.' to
Séméswar . e 42
2. The K4rkal-Udipi road ... 12
3. Karkal-Paduobidri road ... 12
4. K4rkal-Guruvayanakeré road ... 27
5. Mudbldrl-(:‘ruruvayanakere road wvia Ve—
noor . ; 28
6. Mudbldn—Sa.ngabettu road .. 6
* 7. Mudbidri-Nellikdr road and on to Ida on '
' the Kérkal-Beltangadi road . ... e 12
8. Mudbidri-Kadand4le road e 7
9. Mudbidri-Aikala road e e 11
10, HOSangadl-Sangabettu road P

The first road is part of the main line of through communica-
tion from Shimdga to Mangalore and is kept by the district
board in a fair condition, as also the two roadsto Udipi. These
and roads Nos. 8, 5, 6 and 9 are well bridged. Most
of them are in good condition for motor and cart traffic and
in.view of the heaviness of the former method of transport both
for passengers and goods, they have to beé kept in very good
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conidition. But for the availability of road metal close to the
toads and in certain localities of gneiss, the condition of these
roads would have been far from satisfactory. There are avenues
in the margins of the main roads, but the tendency has been to
grow fewer avenue trees in view of the damage they cause to the
road surface during the long rainy season.

The taluk is in the (‘oondapoor sub-collector’s division.
The local revenue officer is the tahsildar and he is also a magis-
trate though the bulk of the magisterial work in the taluk is

attended to by the stationary sub-magistrate. There ig only

one circle ingpector of police in the taluk with headquarters at
Mudbidri. There are police stationsat Kéarkal and Mudbidri
and an outpost at Hebri. Except for a few villages in the
north which are attached to the Udipi munsif’s court the rest
of the taluk is under the district munsif of Kérkal, who has also
a few villages in the north of the Mangalore taluk under hls
jurisdiction. .

For ﬁgures relatmg to the populatlon gexes and the reli.
gions to which they belong, reference is invited to Tables I,
V and VIII of this book.

The extent of land under ryotwari cultivation in the taluk
is 189,880 acres. There are no inams, major or minor, or
zamindaries. 98,167 acres are under forest, 24,035 acres are
not available for cultivation and 140,365 acres of assessed waste
lands are available for extension of cultivation. 61,343 aores
are 9aid to be current fallows, that is assessed lands which
cotld not be cultivated for some reason or other. The net area
cropped in 1984-35 was 78,464 acres. Including the area
cropped more than once, the extens ‘under cultlvatlon was
101,343 acres in 19384~ 35.

Rice is the p mclpal cl‘op and the normal area under it is
93,600 approximately ; the other important crops raised are
ragi (900 'acres), pulses (3,221 acres), oil-seeds and gingelly
(400 acres), coconuts. (3,000 acres), condiments and spices
(2,300 acres) of which nearly two-thirds were under chillies,
arecanuts (1,760 acres), betel-vines (270 acres) and fruits and
vegetables (4,860 acres). The normal land revenue of the taluk
is Rs. 8,45, 913 inclusive of cesses.

~ The staple food of the ‘people is-rice which is grown as a
first crop on most of the wet lands, and a second erop- of pulses
is grown on such lands on Whlch it is not possﬂole to raise

“another crop of rice. Arecanuts are grown in the shaded

valleys near the ghats and in the midst of laterite hills. Sugar-

cane is grown only to a sma,ll extent and ragi on a.bout a
thousand aores, -
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The following table gives the stock -of  agricultural :cattle
and toecls faken at the census of 1935:— . .~ . :
. Bulls and bullocks ... ... = ... 86,933 "

Cows ... o . 27,481 0
Male buffaloes e e .. 27,981
Cow do. 4855
Young stock ... e 84461
~ Sheep and goats ... . ... w827
Ploughs e e o 51,067 be-
i " sides 20 iron
ploughs.
Carts ... e . 930 carts

and 41 ’boats,

For the notes on Karkal at page 264 add the following e

Population in 1931 was 7,179 of whom 761 were Muham-
madans 758 Christians and 110 Jains. In the hamlets
adjoining the town the population was 2,400 of whom 149 were
Muhammadans, 899 Christians and 33 Jains. There is a Jocal
fund hospital here and a fine travellers’ bungalow almost
opposite the Gumta hill and in view of the colossal statue of
Gumta-rdya. - The district munsif’s court is close to. this bun-
galow and the town consists of one main street starting from
this court and running for about two miles and having a few
cross streets of short lengths. The taluk office is at the other
end of this long street. The town is a big centre for motor
buses which take off to all parts of the district from here and
is noted for the large colony of Konkanese or Gauda. Sarasvats
whose temple to Venkataramana is perhaps the biggest in the
digtrict. The board high school here is well patronized and
popular. Among industries must be mentioned the making of
stone idols and pillars for temples by a few masons. Small
stone models of the Gumta-réya can be made to order though
the charges are rather high.

Not» far from the travellers’ _bungalow and standing
on an ideal site of about 40 acres covering a valley between
two laterite hills is the “ Srinivdsa Asramam)’ a unique

institution so far as this distriet is concerned. The Asramam

was opened in 1869 by the late Mr. Padma Kémath, a Gauda
Sarasvat Brahmin (who donated Rs. 40,000 for it) and includes
a Vldvala.ya called after their caste guru. The Vidyalaya or
school is housed in an excellent building and the site was the
gift of the Venkataramana temple of the place to the institution.
Education is given in’ Sénskrit, Kanarese and English -and
students (of whom there were about fifty in-1935) are trained
for the Oriental Titles Examinations of the Madras University.
Some of the boys are free-boarders and are provided with

Yor. IT,
Crar. XIX,
[ S
Agricultural

stock.

Places of in-
terest.
Karkal,



Yor. 1L
‘Cuap, XIX.

e

356

rooms and a Mandir or prayer-house where Sri Krishns’s image
is worshipped. There is a fine stone-revetted tank in front of
the Mandir and the boarders bathe in the tank and attend

- prayers both in the morning and evening at the Mandir on its

bank. Vocatlonal training in weaving, bakery and horticulture
is also given. The local Harijan Sévak Sangh sends several
depressed class school-children to this boarding house for food

and for prayeérs at the Mandir. These children belong to the
Ranar or Holeya caste. It is proposed to open a settlement for

this and other lower classes in the neighbourhood of the
Asramam. There is a stone mantapam close to the tank
referred to above to which the idol in the Venkataramana
temple is taken on new-moon day (in November) when four to
five thousand people of the (Gauda Sirasvat community
assemble here for worship and are given a big feast.

Karkal is famous as the capital of Bairasa Wodeyars who

‘held this part of the distriet for about five centuries. The

actual capital was at a hamlet Hiriangadi or Pandysnagar
where there is now a famous basthi. Close to the basthi are the
ruins of the Wodeyér’s palace. The Bairasus are said to be the
descendants of one Jinadatta Réya, who ruled at Humcha near
Kalasa in the Mysore State. This Jinadatta escaped from his
father’s kingdom as the king, to please a junior wife, wanted to
kill him, and founded the town of Humcha and married the
two daughters of Vira-Pindya of Madura who bore him two
sons, Pdrswachandra (01‘ Bhairava Pindya) and Némichandra
and they were all Jains. Bittidéva or Vlshnuvardhana, the
Hoéysala kmg, defeated (so says an inscription in Sravana-
Belgdla) in 1123 A.D., the Jain king of Humcha, since when
the Jain kings became their feudatories. Bhairava Péndya
seized Karkal and built the palace at Hirangadi close to it near
the famous basthi and called the place Pindyanagar. From
ingeriptions in the Narasimhaswédmi temple at Coondapoor
dated 1262 and in the Vira-Bhadra temple at Kétéswara dated
1261 it appears that a Pindya-Déva-Arasu was king of the
northern part of this district and that he constructed- the
Anakarai tank at Karkal. From another inseription in the
western wall of the Guru-Basthi of Karkal dated 1334, it
appears that Lékanitha-Déva-Arasa was king in that year and

-a feudatory of the Hoysalas. His army seems to have contained

many Tamilians and the place where they lived at Karkal was
called Thmgala.rakerl (now known as Vibert road). During the
next reign, that is of Vira-Pindya-Déva-Arasa, the country
passed under the Vijianagar kings who had their viceroy at
Barkir.  Ramanédtha-Arasa was the next king and his overlord
was Vira Prathipa Wodeysr at Bérkdr. This Rémanétha
constructed the reservoir mear Kéarkal called Rimasamudra
after him, Bairasa Wodeyir was the next king according. to
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an inscription dated 1418 at the gate of the Hirianeméswara Vor. IL.
basthi at Kdrkal. His son Vira Pindya Bairdsa Wodéyar CHAEIX‘
who sucteeded was a devout Jain who had in his youth visited °
several Jain holy places. He had the Gumta cut ont of a rock
and installed on the granite hill near Kérkal. - The statue was
carried in a cart of 20 wheels and was set up with great pomp,
Déva Raya II of Vijianagar attending the function, The
inseription on it dated 1431-82 says that the Gumta or Bhuja-
Bali was installed by Vira-Pindya. He also erected the stone
pillarin front of the Gumta. Hiria-Bairava one of his successors
gave endowments to the thousand-pﬂlared basthi at Mudbidri
in 1462 A.D. as recorded in an inscription at the Gaddige-
mantap of that basthi. About this time the power of the
Bhairava Rayas began to decline. Immadi Bairava Réiya the
next king withheld the usual tribute to the Vijianagar which
was then under Vira Narasimha, who had to invade Kérkal
with a large army and pus down this recalcitrant chieftain,

Tt was about this time (1510 A.D.) that several Gauda Séarasvats
from Goa left their homes because of the religious _persecution
by the Portuguese invaders who had taken possession of their
country. The Karkal chiefs gave them shelter and also erected
for them the Venkataramana temple.there in 1537. On the
guppression of the Bairasa Wodeyars and the ruin of their
palace the stones there were utilized for the construction of the
mantapam in the Venkataramana temple and the tank in front
of it.

The rehglous toleration shown by the Balrasa Wodeyars is
exemplified in the Wodeyér chief handing over a basthi which
he had just constructed in 1584 A.D. to Narasimha Bharathi
Swémi of Srmgen mutt who happened to visit Kérkal in that
year. The swami was allowed to halt in that new basthi and
helped to instal in it a fine idol of Ananteswar lying on a
serpent bed, that lay buried in a tank in Nellikdru V]Hage
This is the present Ananthéswara temple at Kérkal. The Jain
guru Lalitha-Kirthi Bhattdraka was much enraged at this
procedure and charged the chief with being a traitor to the
Jains but the chief said that as a king he had to respect all
religious beliefs in his territory and he built on a hillock near
the Gumta hill the Chathurmukha-basthi which has openings
on-all four sides and has all the twenty-four Tirthdnkaras in it.
During the time of one of the later chiefs Tmmadi Bairava Réya,
Timmanna Ajala of Vénoor desired to instal a Gumta statue in
his place. To this Bairava objected and a fight ensued in
which Bairava was worsted. This Bairava appears to have
been a self-willed and ecruel man for he defeated the Chowter
queen Tiramald-Dévi in battle and had her head cut off and
1mpa.1ed for which act the Banga-Araga. of Nand4var refused to
~give him ‘his daughter in marriage, and ‘was driven out.
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The Chowter queen’s son Chikka-Rdya then sought the
help of the 1kkéri chief Venkatappa Niyaka and avenged the
murder of his mother, and Kérkal was taken by the allies.
Two other chiefs of Karkal are mentioned in the inseriptions, a
Rémanétha Wodeyar who married the Ajala queen of Vénoor
ag an ingeription at the Tirtdnkara-basthi at the latter place
shows, and a Vira Péndya opposed the performance of an
abhishekam to the Vénoor Gumta by the Ajaldr queen and
obtained Néravi Savara Mégéne from her to buy his peace.

_ Nelhka,r.——Popu]atlon 866 in 1981. Good granite stones
are quarried in the neighbourhood. This village contained an
idol of Anantéswara reputed to have been set up here by sage
Atri. It was buried in a tank in the village, and was taken
out by order of a Bhairava-Riya of Karkal and installed by
S1f Narasimha Bhérathi Swami of Sringéri mutt in a basthi in
Karkal and the village which is said to be a hamlet of Neléru
(population 2,452) was given as an endowment to this temple.
The temple gets a tasdic of Re. 400 from Government.

Naravi.—Population 1,300 in 1981, of whom 268 are
Christians. It is noted for its baskets and soap-stone vessels,

Narole.—Fifteen miles to the east of Kirkal, is the head-
quarters of a Jesnit mission. All round is thick forest and
the .chapel here was built in 1860. Father Corti was the
pioneer missionary here and he converted the jungle tribes by
giving up his Buropean habits and leading the simple life of
these tribes. He defended the depressed classes and strove to
raise them from their low level amidst great opposition from
the land-owners. Bishop Perini visited Narole in 1910 and
baptised large numbers of Pariahs or Koragas. - Father Corti’s
mission started in 1905 and within about twenty years had
gathered 4,000 converts. He was awarded the Kaiser-i-Hind
medal on Ist January 1918 and died in 1926.

Durga.—(Population 1,438 in 1931) is noted for its areca
cultivation by a class of Mahrétta Brahmins. Tt is said that
these Brahmins are now deteriorating and are slowly giving up
areca cultivation which is very regrettable.

. Hebri.—(Population 1,828 in 1931) a village on the elghth
mile ‘on the Agumbé-Udipi Toad is noted for its rattan baskets
and leaf mats woven by certain low caste weavers. There is

-an old temple to Anantha-Padmandbha Wlth a tank in front

whose walls are built of cut laterite stones. " Four miles b_elo.w

- Hebri_at Sivapuri on the Udipi road, the Madisal-Holé 'is

crossed by a'bridge ‘There is good paddy cultlvatlon under
this Holé. . There is a police outpost here.’

Someshwar.——-Is an insignificant village at the foot of the
Western Ghats in the north-east corner of the taluk and iy
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29 miles from Udipi. The ghat road leading to Agombé at
the head of the hills on the Mysore side starts from this place.
From the top of this ghat road, the finest view of the district
is obtained. The ghat section has several abrupt curves and
driving up the ghat road, which is narrow in several gections,

is difficult for most motorists. This section is nine miles long"

and 'the distriet borders are crossed at the fourth mile sixth

furlong. Except for its position at the opening of the ghat
road through which salt, pepper and other produce from the-
coast goes to Mysore State and the products of that State are

brought down to the coast, the village has no importance.
There are two temples in the village: one, a mean looking
building to Séméswara (from which the v1llage gets its name)
and the other to Venkataramana and belonging to the Kon-

kanis. The férmer is the more ancient of the two and was
- built by one of the Bérkar chiefs, while the latter which must

have been built about two or three centuries ago looks richer

and is said to serve the Konkanis living in about a dozen:

neighbouring villages. There are a few houses of Ranadévs,
a low caste, lower than the Holeya, who weave baskets out of
reeds obtained from the forests on the ghat slopes. :

- Venoor or Yenur.—Population was 805 in 1931. The

account of this place at pages 259-60 of the Gazetteer, must
come under this taluk.  Add to these notes the followmg

All that remains of the old palace are only foundations of
buildings and two stone elephants. The Gumta statue was cuat
in a vlllage called Nittdde. There are eight Jaina basthis in
the village. The last abhishekam to the Gumta was done in
1926,

The village is noted as the capital of the Ajalars, who were
Jain chieftains with palaces at Vénoor, Alatangadi, Kéla and
Baraya.. The Vénoor palace which is now entirely in ruins was

in the eastern esplanade of the Gumatéswara-basthi. The two
stone elephants still standing there stood at the gates of the .
palace which tradition says was seven storeys hlgh To the

south-east of the palace was the Mahabéléshwar temple which
is still there. Behind the Gumta is the P4rswandtha-basthi and

the Jain-péta lies about half a mile to the east of this basthi..

The idols in the Tirthdnkara-basthi are well carved and are the
best of their kind in South Kanara. Close to the Chandra-
nétha-basthi is the stone inscription which says that it was
built by the queen of Timmanna Ajala. The Binnani-basthi
was built in 1604 by another queen of Timmanna, 8o says an

inseription near thig basthi. Hoysalas reduced the Jain kings

of Kanara -to subjection in the ‘eleventh century A.D.
Timmanna Ajala I (1154 to 1180 A.D.) tried to throw off his
yoke, repaired the old palace and constructed the seven storeys

in its front tower. A Bant named Punja (1180 to 1186 AD.)

Vor. I1.
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succeeded as both the nieces of Timmanna were childless, and
the local Bants selected one of their own number as chief of
Vénoor. Kima Déva, a Kadamba king suppressed this revolt
of the Bants at Vénoor and restored, to oneof the nieces large
portions of the Ajaldr country. She thereupon seized Vénoor
and then came to Alatangadi and built there a palace and close
to it a basthi and a temple to Ardhaniriswara-Sémanédtha. Her
son Raya Kumdra I reigned 1186 to 1204 A.D. and the
Vamsavali mentions the names of 8 kings who succeeded him
and reigned down to the year 1550. It was Vira Timmanna
Ajala IV (1550 to 1610 A.D.) that got a statue made to
Gumta-raya with a view to instal it at Vénoor. When news
of ity proposed installation reached Bhairava Riya of Karkal,
he objected to the installation and wanted the statue to be
sent on to him at Kédrkal. This was not done and so Bhairava
Réya proceeded with his army to Nardvi, plundered the country
and set fire to temples and basthis. The Gumta-rdya had been
buried in the bed of a river to prevent its removal to Karkal.
Bhairava Ridya got worsted in the struggle and driven back
and then the statue was taken out and installed. The inscrip-
tion on the statue states that it was installed by Timma-R4ja
of the Chdmunda family at the request of Guru-Charukirthi of
Sravana-Belagtla on 1st March 1604. On the decline of the
Vijianagar empire, the Ajalars agreed to pay 8,000 pagodas as
tribute to Venkatappa Nayaka of Tkkéri. Madurakka-Dévi IT
(queen from 1610 to 1647 A.D.) had married Rédmandtha-Arasu
of Kérkal, the builder of the Rdmasamudram tank thereand the
latter made grants to the basthis at Vénoor. His queen per-
formed a mahd-abhishékam for the Gumta statue and to meet
the objections by Bhairava Raya of Karkal and have a peaceful
celebration, she had to give the village of Naravi to the latter.
The last Apla was Timmanna V (1721 to 1765), during whose
time Hyder Ali overran the district and exacted from the
Ajalar an annual tribute of 7,000 pagodas as against 8,000
paid to the Tkkéri Rajahs.. In 1761 Sheik Ali, younger brother
of the Ali-Rajah of Cannanore brought Vénoor and the
countries of the Bangars and Chowters under his control. The
palace at Vénoor was plundered and Timmanna Ajala was put
in prison. Hyder restored Timmanna to his chieftainship
raising the tribute to 11,000 pagodas at which the Ajalar died
of grief. His nephew Pandyappa had the Ajalar’s private
lands restored to him and ‘died in 1786. The descendants of
the Ajaldrs are now living in the Alatangadi palace and are in
receipt of a malikana allowance from Government.

The notes at page 257 about Mudbidri should be read here.
Add to that the following :—

- The populatlons of Préntiya and Puttlge ‘were 2,581 and
3,119 respectively in 1931, The paintings on the wallg of the
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old palace no longer exist. The Jain antiquities of this place

are unrivalled throughout the Presidency as detached works
and are truly Bgyptian in size. The main building of the
great Chandranitha-basthi and its beantiful -pillared hall are
in a very good state of preservation. There are no less than
17 old basthis or temples at this place and Chandranitha, the
8th Tirthankara appears to be the most popular saint to whom

the biggest basthi here is dedicated. The tombs of the Jain
priests of which there are 28 in various stages of decay are

situated in the open grass land close by the road side about a
mile to the east of Mudbidri. Two of the tombs stand on the

north side of the road and all the rest on the south side, all

close together. The two solitary tombs are said to be those of
two wealthy Jain merchants but the others are those of priests.
They are built of carefully cut laterite stone and were originally
ornamented with tall granite finials most of which have fallen
down and are now set up in the compounds of temples or in
private houses as curios. The palace itself looks insignificant
from the outside and was used as the deputy tahsildar’s office.
Four beantifully-carved pillars, a carved wooden ceiling and a
fine old carved wooden door leading into a passage to the inner
court-yard are the only objects of interest. The carvings
are Hindu in origin and workmanship and Chélukyan in style.
In the palace resides (1936) Mr. Dharmasamrajya, a representa-
tive of the old Chowter chiefs, whose history is brleﬂy
summarised below.

The Chowter Réjah who had his eapital originally at Ullal was
one of those South Kanara chieftains who were taken prisoners
to Halebid in Mysore State by the Hoysala king, Vishnuvar-

dhana in 1117, as recorded in an inscription at Halebid.

Tirumala Réya (zhowter I(1160 to 1179 A.D.) was residing at
Séméshwar, a village near Ullal, and their family deity was
Sémanatha. The Chowter built temple to this deity and a fort
at Thokkota near Ull4l both of which are now in ruins. His
nephew Chenna-Réya I (1179 to 1219 A.D,) who succeeded to
the chieftaincy annexed the Mijir-migane to his territory and
built the?palace at Puttigé to which he subsequently removed.

Ruins of this pa,latla,l building can still be seen there, The

next Chowter Dévardya (1219 to 1245 A.D.) was succeeded by &
devout Saivite who used to get daily prasadhams from the
Séméshwar temple at Ull4], and built in 1255 A.D. another
temple to Sémanétha near the palace. Abbakka-Dévi I (1283
to 1316 A.D.), Bhéja-Raya I (1816 to 1335 A.D.), Padumala-
Dévi I (1885 to 1382 A.D.), Chinnamma-Dévi I (1882 to 1403
A.D.) and Chenna-Raya IT (1403 to 1470 A.D.)are the next
chiefs in succession. The last helped the Bangar Raja of
Nandévar against the Kolattiris of Niléshwar for which the
Rangar gave him certain villages including Péjavar. This

Yor. IT,
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CVDL- % is recorded in inscriptions on certain stones near a ba.nyan tree
Jaar. XL ate Pa.lhpadl bearing date 1410 A.D.

.. He had visited Mijar and granted endowments to the temple
of‘ the local goddess Jaladurgi and a visit to Pélali Réjardjés-
wari temple was followed by the grant of endowments to it.
He went to Ammembédla across the Nétravathi and had the
Sémanatha temple there repaired and endowed. The fort at
Arkula now in ruins was built by him. The Tribhuvana Tilaka
Chaityalaya of Mudbidri was built by Jain Settis of the place
in 1429. - The manfapam in front of the basthi was built in
1451 by Bhairava-Dévi the queen of Bhatkal and daughter of
Bhairava-Raya of Kérka!l and is called Bhairavadévi-mantapam
after her. Thesecond and third storeys on this basthi were built
later. Bhéja Raja TI {1470 to 1510 A.D.} visited Krishnadéva
Raya of Vijianagar and returned with valuable presents and
built the temple of Mériamma at Mudbidri to placate his
palanquin bearers and another temple at Kadandalai to the idol
of Subbarsya which he had brought with him from Vijiaragar.
With the appearance of Portuguese trouble at the end of his
relgn Ullal’s importance as one of his capitalsbegan to decline.

His nephew Tirumala Réja TIT (1510 to 1544 A.D.) entered
into an alliance with neighbouring chiefs to protect themselves
agamst the Banga Réja, Bairasa Wodeya and Kunda Hegede.
This is recorded in a copper-plate grant in the temple at
Nandalike dated 1528 A.D. Krishnadéva Riya of Vijianagar
made several endowments to the temples in this distriet in his

. time. Tirumala’s niece Abbakka-Dévi II was chief from 1544
to 1582 A.D. She had married Banga Rdéjs Lakshmapparasa.
She stayed at the Ulldl palace and her husband in his capital
at Mangalore. He died in 1566 A.D. and was succeeded by
his nephew K4ma-Raya. There were frequent disputes between
Kéma-Raya and Abbakka-Dévi. The former sought the help
of the Portuguese who then began levying customs from all
ports, but Abbakka-Dévi (whom they called Bukka-Dévi)
declined to pay any tribute and the Portuguese officer came
with an army of 8,000 men in 7 ships and anchored off Ull4l.
These boats were att_acked by Abbakka-Dévi’s men and driven
away. During a later incursion, the Portuguese succeeded in
capturing Ull4l and setting fire to the town. Abbakka-Dévi
fled to her hill fort at Uchchila-Talapidi and concluded a
treaty in 1569 A.D. with her enemies. The Portuguese set
fire a second time to Tll4l in 1581 because the queen failed to
pay her tribute. Abbakka’s daughter Tirumala-Dévi (1582 to
1606 A.D.) had  her own disputes with Bairava-Riya, was
defeated by him and killed and her head was carried to Karkal
and presented to him. To avenge her death Chandrasékhara-
Chikka Réya I (1606 t0 1628 A.D.), her son, sought the help of
Yenkatappa, Néyaka, king of Ikkerl Th_e Chowter kingdom
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was greatly extended during Chikka Réya’s time, His niece

Chennamma Dévi II succeeded him in 1628 A.D. and had a Cu4r-XIX.

Vor.-T1,

shorl reign of two years. Her son Bhéja Réya III (1630 to

1644 AD.) failing to pay his tribute, was summoned to Ikkéri
and imprisoned. As the palace at Puattigé had become old, a
new one was built at Madbidri and opened in 1643 A.D.
Ulldl magane with the exception of Séméshwar was attached to
Ikkéri. A few other kings and queens were in power till 1726
A.D. when Abbakka-Dévi ITI succeeded to the throne. Séma~
sékhara Nédyaka of Ikkéri came to' Mudbidri and stayed at the
Ponnachéru-mutt. There was some misunderstanding between
him and the queen who left her country with her daughter and
grandson for Chirakkal leaving the administration in the hands
of ministers. On Sémasékhara’s death (1740 A.D.) she
regained her kingdom and- at the coronation of her grandson
Chandrasékhara Chikka Réya III as Chowter, Basavappa
Néyaka of Ikkéri was present. In 1763 A.D. Hyder Ali took
possession of the Ikkéri kingdom and came to Karkal where
Chikka Réya visited him. Sheik Ali, the governor of Manga-
lore, was ordered to annex the provinces of the feudatory chiefs
and he increased the Chowter’s tribute from 13,792 to 21,215
pagodas. Hyder came to Mudbidri in 1766 on his way to
Mangalore and at Chikka Rdya’s representation reduced the
tribate to 18,000 pagodas. Finally Hyder sequestered the
Chowter’s territory and gave him an allowance of 455 pagodas a
year. S '
The family continues to remain in the palace, now almost in
ruing. Its site measures 8 acres and is surrounded by mud
walls and a moat. There is a temple to Sémanath to the west
of the palace and a Mariamman temple to the north-west of the
fort. On the British Government acquiring this district the
Chowter’s allowance was fixed at Rs. 793-12-0 which the
Chowter is still drawing. | ‘

Aldangadi, is famous as the seat of the old Jain chiefs
known as Ajalirs. The palace in Aldangadi was built by
Madurakka-Dévi who also built the Ardhandriswara and
Sémanétha temples and a basthi close to that palace. This was
at the close of the 12th century. Their other capital was
Vénoor. - '

Sivapuri, lies on the road leading to Agumbé ghat from
Udipi and is noted for its bamboo baskets,

Kasaragod taluk.

Page 244, paragraph 4—Substitute :—The Késaragsd taluk
is the southernmost taluk of the district and is bounded on the
north by Mangalore and Puttér taluks; on the east by the
Puttir taluk and the province of Coorg; on the south by

S8.K.—384 ‘
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Malabar ; and on the west by the Arabian sea. The sea-board
is about 50 miles in length and the greatest breadth from the
sea to the Coorg frontier is 26 miles. The area of the taluk is
762 square miles. The northern and north-eastern parts of the
old Késaragéd taluk (which had an area of 1,032 square miles)
were added to the Mangalore and Puttir taluks respectively
which accounts for the area of the taluk suffering a reduction
of 270 square miles.

Paragraph 6.—Add :—These rivers are, from the south, the
Ariakaduva-Holé and the Niléshwar river both of which fall
into the backwaters to the south of Niléshwar village which
run into the Malabar district ; the Chandragiri river which falls
into the sea at Késaragéd ; the Kanntru-Holé which enters the
sea at Mogrdl; the Shriya which joins the Arabian sea at
Kumbla ; and the Uppala which meets the sea at Manjéshwar.

Paragraph 7.—8ubstitute for the first two sentences the
following :—Along the sea-board there is the usual low-lying
sand intersected by backwaters or estuaries, with the usual
narrow strip of sand between the backwaters and the sea.
Then come the laterite hills or plateau which near the coast,
are like swelling downs, but further inland are specially high
and often ridge-like with deep valleys to correspond, thus
affording great facilities for arecanut cultivation which is
carried on successfully in the north-eastern portion of the taluk,
though not to the same extent as in the valleys around Vittal
(now included in the Puttir taluk) or in the Honnér magéne of
Coondapoor taluk).

Page 245, paragraph 1.-—Add :—Targe patches of partly
sandy soil near the coast are utilized for the cultivation of tobacco
and vegetables after the paddy crop in them is harvested, and
the Méppillas seem to excel in the cultivation of these crops,
and, as the Shdnar cultivators of South Tinnevelly do, irrigate
them with water from temporary wells sunk on the sandy soil
even carrying the waterin pots to the plants. N

Paragraph 2.—Delete the second sentence as Vittal-migéne
is now in Puttir taluk.

Paragraph 3.—Add after the fourth sentence :—The flying
fox is also found in large numbers on tree tops in the casuarina
plantations raised along the coast and on the tall Aswatha
(Religiosa indica) trees.

Pamgmphs 4 and 5 and page 246, paragraph 1.— Substi-
tute : —A railway now runs along the coast. It enters the taluk
from Malabar two miles south of Tricdrptr and leaves the taluk
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abouf three miles north of Manjéshwar, a distance of about _ Vor.IL
50 miles. There are railway stations at Trikérptr, Chérvattiar, CHef XIX.
Niléshway, Kanhangid, Pallikére, Kotikulam, Kasaragéd, .
Kumbla, Mangalapddi and Manjéshwar. The road communi-

cations in the taluk are extensive and continue to progress

under - the district board. These are the— :

— et

MILES

Adkasthala~-Kanhangdid Road ... e B4
Jalagir-Késaragéd Road .. 9l
Anékal-Manjéshwar Road e w10
Chippéru-Mangalapédi Road ... e 9
Badaru-Mangalapadi Road .. 8
Perdsla (Badiadka)-Kumbla Road we 10
Késaragod-Madir Road .. 4
Tekkila~Uduma Road R e 4
Békal-Paniyal Road ... e b
Panathédi-Hosdrug Road . .. 20
. South-Coast Road ... .. 51

The coast road is beiag continued to the Malabar frontier
and is expected to be completed before the end of 1936. The
above roads are all under the management of the distriet board
and the annual outlay on them has gone on increasing,
especially after the introduction of motor traffic in them; and
had excellent road metal not been available so close to these
roads, their maintenance would have been almost an impossi-
bility. The total mileage (186 miles) is greater than that of
other taluks with the exception of Puttir. Most of the goods
traffic from the Kanhangad river to Malabar goes by rivers and
backwaters but for this circumstance the confinuance of the
coast road: as a metalled road to the Malabar frontier would
have been an established fact long ago, and it would not
have been merely left (as it is now) in its sandy condition for
the use of foot-passengers only. The coast road both north
and south of Kisaragéd had been long neglected until a few
years ago and there were several stretches of sand between
Mangalore and Hosdrig. The road has, however, to meet a
number of large rivers and cross backwaters and naturally
guffers in popularity, notwithstanding elaborate arrangements
made for ferrying foot-passengers and goods and in some places
even vehicles across tham. The first-mentioned road was
originally constructed ag a military road and bridged through-
out and kept open all the year round, but it is very circuitous
and passes through so inhospitable a country that people at one
time preferred to it the Coast Road from Mangalore, despite
its backwaters and rivers. There is, however, much loecal
traffic along this road now as it is a short-cut to the villages of
the Puttdr taluk, and is well maintained. Some of its old

S.K.—34-a
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bridges which had been built for the sake of economy, with
whatever laterite was available on the spot and so fell down,
have now been replaced by cut-stone bridges with iron girders
on top to carry the roadway. The road from Jalastr to
Késaragdd is also equally useful as it brings produce from Coorg
and the interior of the taluk to Kdsaragéd. 'The roads leading
to Manjéshwar and Kumbla were found very useful when these
places were ports, for carrying to them the produce of the
interior,

Page 246, paragraph 2, first two sentences.—Substitute :—In
addition to these roads there is considerable facility for water
communication for 20 miles from Hosdrig to the Malabar
frontier. The above water-route is in direct eommunication
with the Mangalore and the Coast Roads and all except the
smallest rivers are navigable for some distance inland for boats
of about three tons capacity.

Page 247, paragraph 2.—Add the following not2 on the
two ancient ruling families of the taluk :—

The old Kumbla Rajahs belong to the same family as
Cochin and governed the country lying between the Uppala
and Chandragiri rivers. This territory included the Kumbla,
Adﬁr, Peradél, Angadlmogaru Késaragéd and Moga,ral
mégines. The Vamanjir migine in Mangalore taluk had
been granted to them by the Alupa kings but this they gave
over to the Chowter in return for his help in fighting the
Bangar chiefs. The family traces its origin to Mayira-
Varma, the Kadamba king. While returning from Cape
Comorin where he had gone on a pilgrimage Maytra-Varma
halted at Kumbla for a bath in the river. His daughter
Susfla swooned on its banks and a Brahmin who happened to be
there revived her by some incantations. The king out of
gratitude gave Susila in marriage to that Brahmin and bestowed
on her the territory which lay between the Nétrdvathi and the
Paiswéni and to the west of the ghats and built for her the fort
and palace at Kumbla. The said fort, known as Kétteldr, still
stands at a distance of a little over a mile to the east of Kum-
bla. Susila’s son Jayasimha succeeded her and heis said to have
defeated and taken as prisoner a Pindyan king of Madura
(Who had invaded the district and encamped outside- Chandra-
giri fort) and to have released him at the intervention of the
queen-mother Susila. The names of nine successors of Jaya-
simha are known and it was during the reign of the ninth king
that Sivappa Néyaka of Ikkéri brought the Kumbla country
under his sway (16564 A.D.). He however -allowed four
mAgénes to be under the Kumblas. The Réjahs then vacated
their palace at Kumbla and constructed a new one at Moipadi
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Sivappa Nayaka built the fort at South Kumbla and stationed
his soldiers there. ~As the Kumbla Réjah was fnendly with the
Enghsh Tippu Sultan took over his territory in 1784 and left
‘him only a small private estate., Ten years later the son of
this Rdjah was seized and hanged by Tippu for aiding the
English. During the lagt Mysore War the Rajah continued to
help the Kagt India Company and the country was plundered
by the Coorg Réjah who ranged himself against them. When
the district came. under the British, Government, the latter
pensioned the Rajah and granted him Rs. 12,000 as malikéna.
There are now two places at Moipadi in one of which lives-the
Rajah and in the other the lady members of the family. = The
Réjahs marry in Nédyar- families but his sisters and mnieces
marry Brahmins. The name of the senior ranee is Susila
always. Their tutelary deity is Sri Krishna and they are
governed by the Aliyasantdna Luw of Inheritance and speak
Tulu, Malayalam and Kanarese.

- The country south of the Paiswani river was under a
branch of the Kol4ttiri family and the Mahadbaléshwar temple
at Gékarna was their state temple. Venkatappa Niyaka of
Tkkéri came to South Kanara in 1608 A.D. and captured this part
- of the country. During the reign of his suceessor Sivappa, the
Portuguese had come and settled in the land and the Kol4ttiri
kings stopped paying tributes to Tkkéri. Sivappa Néyaka
then invaded Kanara and took possession of the territory bet-
ween Békal and Chittiri. He rebuilt the Chandragiri fort;
and built the fort at Békal on a promontory jutting into the
sea. The latter fort occupies a site of 13 acres and the bastion
on the face was- intended to prevent enemy ships from
approaching the coast, Sivappa Néyaka got his own men
known as Rama-Raya—Kshatmyas for his army, and . their
descendants are still living in the vicinity of Békal and other
old Tkkéri Ra]ahs forts, one of which was at Chittari.
Niléshwar and Thayakemt migines were grants made by
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Kolattiri kings to one of their daughters, who was also given a

palace, at Niléshwar and a fort.there. The Kolattiri R4jahs
captured the Chandragiri fort but it was re-captured in 1753
and the whole country came under Sivappa Ndayaka. The
Nilakantéswara temple at Niléshwar was built by a Kolattiri
Réjah. Strappa Nayaka of Bérkir, commander under the
Vijianagar viceroy Sémasékhara mvaded Niléshwar and after a
war of twelve years captured Kanhangad and built close by a
fort that is the one now at Hosdrig. Peace was. concluded
and Niléshwar was restored to its former R4jah who was
obliged to pay a tribute to Tkkéri. This tribute was increased
by Hyder to meet which the R4jah had to inctease the kist.
As Hyder’s levies increased further the R4jah fled to Travan-
core, fearing a raid by Hyder’s troops. The latter, however,
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took possession of the country and collected the revenue. The
Muhammadan commander of Békal fort Badruz Zaman Khan
hanged a Niléshwar Réjah in 1785-86, occupied Niléshwar,
and destroyed its fort. The R4jah’s brother fled to Travancore
and stayed there till the fall of Seringapatam. When the
Enghsh came into possession of the district, they allowed the
surviving Réjah to retain his private land and gave him a
Malikdna allowance.

Pyragraph 38.—Substitute :—The taluk lies in the general
duty deputy collector’s division, whose quarters are at Puttir.
The chief local revenue officer is the tahsildar. He is also the
magistrate but the magisterial work is done by the stationary
sub-magistrate at Késaragéd and the deputy tahsildar at
Hosdriig. The latter is in charge of 31 villages in the south
of the district and attends also to the revenue work arising in
them. The taluk has on the whole 114 villages and forms a
single police oircle under an inspector. There are three police
stations (Manjéshwar, Késaragéd and Hosdrig) and two out-
posts. In respect of civil suits the bulk of the taluk is under
the jurisdiction of the district munsif of Kasaragéd. Parts of
the taluk on the north and the north-east are respectively under
the district munsifs of Mangalore and Puttir.

Paragraph 4—Add :—For statistics of the population of the
taluk in 1921 and 1931, its distribution between the sexes, its
density and for a distribation of the population among the
three great religions prevailing in the district, please see tables
I, V and VIII of this book.

Last paragraph ending in page 248.—Add :—Table IX in
this book gives figures for the area and crops raised in the
taluk and classifies them on the lines indicated in this para-
graph. The figures given relate to faslis 1335 (1925-26) a.nd
1342 (1932-33).

Page 248, paragraph 2.—Add :—The agricultural stock in
the taluk at the census taken in 1935 is given below :—

Bullocks ... e . 42217
He-buffaloes . 17124
Cows e .. 87,229
Bulls and heifers under four years we 40,906
She-buffaloes .. 6,156 -
Young buffaloes ... oo 3,244
Sheep and goats ... .. 10,929
Horses and po‘nies. 15
Carts e 843
Ploughs (Wooden) w. 40,264
Iron ploughs = ... 49

‘Boats ... ree we 1,190
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Page 248, paragraph 3.—Add :—The local fund hospital has
been taken over by Government. The fort which covers an area
of about 5 acres is in ruins, though the walls of laterite stones
and the bastions are intact as also parts of the moat. There is
a temple to Hanumén inside the fort which is the case in all forts
built by the Ikkéri Rijahs or the Vijianagar kings. The site
of the fort has been assigned and is now in the possession of a
family whose house name (it is really village name) is Chand4-
varkar. The railway station is only two furlongs from the fort.
Inside the fort, on a bastion, is a tower-like construction said
to be a memorial building for one of the last owners. There
are two gates leading into the fort on one of which stands the
Hanumén temple above referred to and near the other is a big
round well which must have supplied the fort with drinking-
water. There are a few small circular wells mostly choked
with earth in the site. There is a board high school, a tile
factory, an oil-mill (since converted into a saw-mill), an ancient
temple to Mallikdrjuna with a tasdic allowance from Govern-
ment, a SArasvat Brahmin temple to Pénduranga, a Gauda
Séarasvat temple to the wusual Venkataramana (which is the
richest of all of them), an old mosque near the railway station
and a new one in the town, two registered banks and two
churches one Roman Catholic and one Protestant. There are
a number of workers in copper who export their finished pro-
ducts to other parts of the taluk and district. There ig an
agricultural demonstrator, a farm at Niléshwar under the
Agricultural department serving as a nursery for coconut
plantations, and a fish-curing yard wherein the curers get tax-
free salt from the Government. Population 9,086 in 1981
which makes it the second biggest village in the taluk after
Niléshwar.

Page 249, paragraph 1.—Add :—There is no police station
in this place now. The Réjah’s palace is at Moipidi in Patla
village and his malikdna is Rs. 1,000 per month. The popula-
tion of Kumbla in 1981 was 4,131 and the name of the revenue
village is Koipadi. Arik4di village close by at the mouth of
the Shriya-Holé had a population of 2,864 in 1981 of whom
more than half were Muslims—farmers and boatmen.

Paragraph 2.~—Add :—Population in 1931 was 12, 820 of
whom 10,809 were Hindus, 1,962 Muhammadans and 49 Chris-
tians. The fort is in ruins. The place is mnoted for its
excellent bananag (or nendrans) which are exported to Manga-
lore and other places. A short note on the family of the
Réjah has been given above. The family has since been split
up into four sections or »idus each of which has its own palace.
One of the R4jahs has built the high school at the place and
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made its expenditure the first charge on the Réjah’s stamam
property. - The village has the largest population in the taluk.

Paragraph 8.—Add :—The population in 19381 was 2,907
(1591 Hindus, 1,141 Muhammadans and 175 Christians).
The place is no longer a port. There is a higher elementary
school established by the temple. It charges no fees to its
pupils of whom there are about 400. There is an important
tannery called St. Joseph’s tannery at Pavar about three miles
to the north (population 1,426 in 1931) where the workers are
Koraga converts. The great Hindu temple is dedicated to
Srimath Anantéswara, but the deity has now come to be called
Sri Madanantéswara. This temple is under the control of
Konkanese or Gauda Sirasvats. In Madhwa-Vijaya which is
a story of the life of Madhvachdrya written by one of his
disciples, it is stated that the Ach4rya met a certain king
Iswara-Déva in one of his pilgrimages in thig part of the
country. Thisking isidentified ag Mah4-Déva (1216-71 A.D.)
of the Deogiri Yddhava family. The Achdrya stayed at Kanwa-
thirtha near this village for a Chaturmésya, when a total eclipse
of the sun occurred (5th July 1293). After a sea-bath he .
visited the temple, simply went round it and then proceeded on
his journey. Apparently he did not stay there, nor was any
biksha offered to him, which may indicate that the temple was
not then in the hands of the local or Drdvida Brahmins. Per-

- haps the temple was even then in the hands of Gauda Saras-

Vittal.

Chandragiri,

Békal,

Udiyivara,

vats, a community different from the Dravidian Brahmins who
were then the followers of Madhvachirya. This Kanwa-thirtha
lies in a pretty village two miles from Manjéshwar ‘on the
sea~coast, Madhvachérya initiated his first eight disciples at
this place, which also contains the tomb of Vijayadvajichérya,
the first Dwaita commentator of Srimad Bhagavatha.

Last paragraph ending in page 250.—This is now in Puttdr
taluk and the note must go under that taluk.

Page 250, paragraph 2.—Add :—The name of the révenue
village is Kalanddu the population of which in 1931 wasg 4,506
of whom 1,733 were Muslims. '-

Paragraph 8.—Add.—The place is easily reached from
Pallikére railway station and the village has a flourishing tile
factory and its population in 1931 was 8,774 which made it the
third most populous village in the taluk.

- Paragraph 4.—Add:—Population in 1931 was 2,358 of
whom-1,005 were Muhammadans. The annual jathra in the loeal
Bhiithasthanam is in April-May. There is a carious custom
in this place, by which the impersonators of the bhuthas visit
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the Muhammadan mosque close by on a Friday before the
jéthra and invite the Muslims assembled there for prayers for
their jathra. .

Page 251, paragraph 1.—Add :—The fort contains a Siva
temple dedicated to Karpiréswara said to be older than the pre-
gent fort which was built by the Ikkéri Réjahs and partly demoli-
shed by Tippu. There are eight bastions and a central mound.
On a spur at one corner outside the fort close to the railway
line are a series of steps biilt and caves dug out of the laterite
rock in 1981 by a monk called Nitydnanda. There are a
number of caves jn it and one of them contains a well also.
Inside the fort there are as many as 60 small round wells

mostly choked with earth and foundations of several buildings..

The walls and the moat are intact in places and there are three
gates. The village is about a mile from Kanhangid railway
station. Its population in 1931 was 4,684.

Paragraph 2.—Add :—The idol in the temple is Mahalingés-
wara and its apnual jithra is in March. There is a damaged
Kanarese—Sanskrit inscription of the reign of the Western
Chalukyan king Kirtivarman II (747-757 A.D.)inthe temple
which shows its antiquity. =

Paragraph 3. —Add :—The village is in Puttir taluk and its
account must go under that taluk.

Paragraph 4.—Add :—The Ganapathi temple in the village
is said to be a very old one and its annual jéthra which is
yisited by many pilgrims occurs in April.

Perdala—Population 7,263. There is a Sanskrit college
in this village which is in receipt of a Government grant. The
village is about seven miles from Késaragéd on ‘the road to
Vittal. Tt has large colonies of Brahmins around it and their
strength in 1981.was 1,758, the highest figure for any village
in this taluk.- '

Mangalore Taluk.

Page 251, paragraph 5.—For the second sentence, substi-
tute :—It is bounded on the north by Udipi taluk, on'the east by
Puttir and Kérkal taluks, on the south by Késaragéd taluk
and on the west by the sea. B R -

Last - two sentehces:—Subsﬁtuté :'—é—'Its'greatés‘t..._'bfeadth is
about 32 miles but it is nowhere less than 7 miles and its area
is 406 square miles. - ' : .
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Paragraph 6.—Add :—The Nétravati river is bridged at
Panemangalore in this taluk on the Sampéji ghat road and the
Gurptr is bridged near Mular-on the Mangalore-‘Mudbidri
road.

Last paragraph, fourth line—For “ 4007 read © 250.”

Delete from the ﬁfth and sixth sentences the Jollowing :—
“and outerops of boulders or even bridges of granite gneiss.”
Delete also the rest of the paragraph. .

Page 252, paragraph 1.—Substitute :—There are few forests
in this taluk, their total area being 1,312 acres of which 1,108
acres are Teserves and 204 acres are managed by panchayats.
Large quantities of firewood and cashewnuts are grown in the
kumakis adjoining the cultivated fields.

Paragraph 2.—Substitute :—There are altogether 172 miles
of road in this taluk. Except the first which is a trunk road and
for which a grant of Re. 500 a mile is made by Government,
the other roads are maintained by the distriet board out of
their own funds. These roads are:

: Miles in the taluk.
The Sampéje ghat road as far as Méni. 22
The Bantval-Punjilkatta road on the
. Kodekal ghat road ) 12
The Agumbé ghat road as far as Ml]ar 18
The Milki-Mudbidri road wup to

Aikala 15
Mulki-Mulki bazaar road ... 1
The Bantvél-Mudbidri road as far as.

Sangabettu ... 12
The North-Coast road 20
The Mangalore-Mulki road via Ba]pe 22
Municipal roads ... . . 50

Total vee 172

—_——

Paragraph 8 ending in page 253.—Substitute —The
district board is in charge of all communications in this
district outside the municipal areas. The Sampéije ghat
road which is a trunk or first-class road leaves the taluk
near Méni about 22 miles from Mangalore and then enters
the Puttdr taluk. The Kodekal ghat road takes off from
it and enters the Puttar taluk at Punjilkatta, 12 miles from
Bantv4l. The Agumbé ghat road leaves Mangalore in a
north-easterly direction and runs 80 miles towards Kérkal

vie Gurplr and Mijir the latter of which is a border village of
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this taluk and lies 18 miles from the taluk headquarters. Fine
avenues of Vateria-Indica (Dipada-mara) existed on these
roads once, but they are now all gone due to age and the
practice is now to grow few avenue trees as owing to rains for
nearly half of the year they cause pot-holes in the road surface
which are a hindrance to the smooth movement of vehicles.
The North Coast road from Mangalore to Shirdr in the north of
Coondapoor taluk runs for a distance of 20 miles as far as
Hejmédi and passes through populous Vll]ages It was practi-
cally abandoned until a few years ago owing to the existence
of numerous ferries and the inland road 24 miles long was
made wvia Béijpe to join the road from Mudbidri to Mulki.
Both roads now exist but the Coast road is more largely used
owing to great improvements in the ferries. The latter road is
however circuifous and hilly and besides the large Gurptr
river, there are the streams between Yekkér and Katila to be
crossed these being too small for ferries and too costly to be
bridged. This accounts for the coast road being re-opened
with modifications and bullock carriages and cars can now be
carried across the ferries at high tide on boats or on ballakuts.
It is only 18 mileslong and passes through a much more
populous country. There are two large ferries instead of one,
but the disadvantage of crossing these ferries is more than
counterbalanced by the shortness and ease of the route.

Page 253, para-gmpk 4, line 2.*-Delete the words
“(Salary Rs. 225)".

Fourth sentence to end.—Subslitute :—There is a circle
inspector of police at Mangalore town and there are in the taluk
four police stations and one outpost, with § sub-inspectors, 15
head constables and 98 constables. The Mangalore inspector
has no jurisdiction over Bantval station in this taluk which is
under the circle inspector of Mudbidri. There are two sub-
inspectors of police in Mangalore town besides the reserve
inspector of police and the reserve force includes an inspector,
a charge sergeant, two sergeants a Jamadar, 9 head constables
and 101 men. In respect of civil actions the taluk is under
the district munsif of Mangalore. The number of villages in
the taluk including the town of Mangalore is 178,

Last paragraph ending in page 254.—For the population of
this taluk in 1921 and 1981, its density, distribution between
gexes and between the three important religions, see TablesI, V
and VIII of this book.

The population increased by 12 per cent in the ten years
1921 to 1931 and there were in the latter year 838 persons to
@& squate mile, an excess of 388 over the figare in 1891.
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Page 254, paragraph 2.—Add :—For the area of ryétWan
land in the taluk and the extent of land which grows the various
principal crops see Table IX of this book.

Paragraph 3. —Add :—The agricultural stock of this taluk

- at the census of 1935 is shown below —

Bullocks 24,098
He-buffaloes ... e 88,615
Cows ... 29,804
Bulls and heifers under four years .. 27,705

- She-buffaloes ... e e 7,908
Young buffaloes 4,939
Sheep and goats 5,359
Horses and ponies 159
Carts ... - 1684 . ..
Ploughs 55,338 .
Boats... - e - 752

Pa,mg/r'dph 4, line 3.—For the first word “ the ” read
“a few” and delete the words “adjoining the ghats.,”

Last paragraph.—For the first sentence, substitute :——
Population 65,675 in 1981 of whom 40,192 were Hlndus '
6,965 Muha,mmada,ns and 18,427 C “hristians.

- Page 255, first paragraph, second line.—For “ deputy
tahsildar ” substitute “ subordinate judge.”

Page 256, paragraph 2.—For the third sentence, sub-
stitute :—The lighthouse ‘i merely a harbour light near the

river entrance.

Twelfth line.—For European  pead “ Indian.” Thirteenth
line. —Add after the word “ colleges ” ““ one for boys and one
for girls.” _

Add at the end of the paragraph :—The industrial eétébhsh—
ments belonging to the old Basel German -Mission have been
taken over by the Commonwealth Trust after the Great*War.,

The Roman Catholic mission institutions in Mangalore have
developed very greatly. The Jeppu Asylum covers 27 acres and
includes a seminary for the training of the clergy with a church
attached, an orphanage for boys, a school for them and for
outsiders close by, an industrial school to teach boys various
trades and provide work for the converts, a convent for

the nuns with a chapel attached, the Sisters in it being. in

charge of the girls’ orphanage and ‘school open to them and to

outsiders, and an industrial school for women,; a home for the

aged and the destitute and an agylum for foundlmgs The

‘seminary is an 1mposmg structure consisting of a handsome
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church in the centre flanked by two. three-storeyed wings.
The ground floor and the second floor generally provide rooms
for the teaching staff and the dormitories of the students as
well as the refectories, and the infirmary; the first floor con-
tains, lecture halls and a well-equipped physical and chemical
laboratory. Extensions to the building were made in 1915 and
1927 so that the seminary is now double the size it
was in 1890. The church is artistic and possesses two massive
towers about 80 ft. high each. Further extensions were made
in 1884 in the shape of a tiled building 80 ft. long and 40 ft.
broad, containing two halls for meetings and for the library of
about 4,000 volumes. The seminary cost about two lakhs to

build, part being contribated by the local people and the rest

coming from Europe from the Society of Jesus and from the
Holy See. Of the 129 students in 1935, 50 belonged to 12
dioceses other than Manglore. :

 The St. Joseph’s Asylum industrial workshops at Jeppu
have been in charge of Father Foglieni, s 7., for more than 40
years now and have won several gold and. silver medals and
ocertificates at industrial exhibitions. Started on a small scale
in 1879, the chief industry taught in the beginning was weav-
ing but it proved a failure. Carpentry was then started which
provides work at present for a number of converts and training
for orphan boys. The leather department started in 1889
attracted a few boys in the beginning and though not very
popalar at present has 28 men and boys at work, but its fature
is very doubtful owing to keen outside competition. = ILron work
was started two years later and its progress has been very marked.
A foundry was added and provides work for a good number of
lathes, planing, shaping, slotting, drilling and milling machines.
As many as a hundred people are employed and the chief work
here is the supply of machinery to tile factories all over South
India. An electric welding apparatus has since been installed
and a cylinder reboring machine for prolonging the life of
automobile engines. About the year 1900, orphans were trained
by a Lay Brother who was engaged in painting the college
church, in painting and modelling. Statues of clay made here are
popular and compare favourably with statues got from Europe.
Work in marble is also undertaken and altars, tombstones, and
commemoration slabs are made here to order. The motor
workshop started later has also grown very popular and provides
employment for about thirty men and boys. A higher elemen-
tary school for the boys of the orphanage was opened in 1914
and contained in-1935 about 250 boys of whom a hundred come
from the boys’ orphanage started in 1879 Thelped by
Government grants. In the convent close by live about 50
nuns and novices and they manage the girls’ orphanage, the
school and the industrial section, where knitting, hosiery,
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washing, ironing, weaving and embroidery both plain and
artistic are taught which have earned for the school several
gold and silver medals and certificates at industrial exhibitions.
Around these institutions several houses have been built in
which families of converts have been allowed to settle. The
whole compound forms a separate parish with a population of
about a thousand. The men work in the workshops and the
women and girls find employment in the various institutions
of the Sisters.

The Father Muller’s charitable institutions at Kankangdi
are a landmark in the history of medical relief in the distriet
and were started in 1880 by the late Father Augustus Muller,
8.5. They consist of the Homoeopathic Poor Dispensary, two
general hospltals, one for men and another for women, a
Leper Aylum with an out-patient leper-clinic and a presbytery
for old and invalid: priests. These institutions stand on a
laterite hill covermg an areaof about 20 acres and commanding
a beautiful view of the town and its surroundings.  The build-
ings are laid out in simple style on the main road to Jeppu
Their founder the Rev. Father Augustus Muller was born in
Westfalia in Germany and had spent 14 years in America in
study and teaching. Himself suffering from various ailments,
he had occasion to study homoeopathy for improving his own
health as allopathic doctors gave him no relief. He made a
special study of the subject under eminent French doctors
and acquired great proficiency. On his arrival in Mangalore
in 1878 Father Muller was attached to the St. Aloysiug’
college where he used to treat students and others with
homoeopathic medicines which he had brought from Paris.
The fame of his treatment spread rapidly and there was great
demand for his medicines.. He opened the homoeopathic poor
dispensary in 1880 and supplied medicines at moderate charges.
Demand for them came from all over India, Burma and Ceylon.
Tather Muller received in 1897 the secret formula for the
Solori-Bellotte Specifics which he greatly improved and which
contributed greatly to the fame of his treatment. He then
started the Leper Asylum, the contagious diseases hospiﬁal and
the hospitals for men and women. He was assisted in his
work by several voluntary workers and the present chief
medical officer of the institutions Dr. Fernandez was one of hls
first helpers. Father Muller wrote a number of books in
several languages on homoeopathy and kindred subjects. The
institutions are under the control of the Bishop of Mangalore
and managed by a Director. The nursing in the hospitals is
by the Sisters of Charity of Milan. The work in the homoeo-
pathic poor dispensary has grown immengely. It employs 60
hands and sent out in 1984, 19,207 parcels and 8,592 prescrip-
tions to patients all over India and Ceylon. The profits are
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utilized to maintain the hospitals and the Leper Asylum. The
out-patients numbered 38,280 in 1984. The Leper Asylum
proper came under Father Muller in 1890. They were first at
Jeppu but the present building on a site of about 10 acres was
acquired subsequently. The building consists now of 11
rooms, 5 for males and 5 for females, the central room being
utilized as chapel for the patients. Additional rooms were
added in 1906 and 1910 and accommodation in the agylum ig
available at present for 76 patients though the actual number
was 87 in 1985 and proposals for further extension are under
consideration.* The asylum is open to all castes and receives
Government aid. A separate leper-clinic for other lepers in
the town has also been opened in the out-patients’ department
in 1926 and in a separate buﬂdmg in the following year, about
85 patients being treated in it in 1985. The two general
hospitals for both sexes are separated by a Chapel. There are
paying wards for well-to-do patients, and for the clergy and
the nuns. These wards are the Father Frachetti’s ward
attached to the male hospital for eight priesis and paying male
patients and the Little Flower ward for four nuns and paying
lady patients. There is a presbytery costing Rs. 14,000 to
house invalid and retired priests of the diocese. The- post
office at Kankanddy was built at a cost of Rs. 7,500 in 1929,
the whole cost being defrayed by the institutions.

The St. Antony’s charity institutions consist of homes for
the indigent and the destitute, the orphans and the aged
among the Roman Catholies. They were founded in 1911 by
the Very Rev. Father Collaco. There are different homes for
persons of both sexes and suitable to their condition. The
Bethleham home is for abandoned babies and nursing mothers
and is a sort of home for foundlings. The 8t. Francis home
is for orphan boys and St. Clare’s for orphan girls, Old and
decrepit men and aged women are housed in St. Joachim’s
home and St. Anne’s home respectively. There is an element-
ary school in the institution for boys and glrls The former
are given vocational training in carpentry, weaving and minor
trades such as pottery, etfc., so as to fit them to eke out their
livelihood after they leave the homes. The girls are taught to
sew and knit and do other fancy and needle-work. - They also
get a training in house-keeping and domestic science. There
were in 1935 about 200 inmates in all these homes which have
been from the start maintained by public charity.

* The foundation stone for the proposed extensions to be called King
George V Silver Jubilee Ward was laid by 8ir Charles Souter, Revenue
Member of Government, on 23rd September 1936. These extensions when
completed will accommodate 16 more in.patients.
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Page 256, paragraph 3.—Delete the first four sentences and
add at the end of the paragraph the following :—The port is at
the junction of the Nétravati and Gurpir rivers and is an outlet
for the produce of Coorg and Mysore, communicdtion with
which has till now been mostly by bullock carts specially
adapted for ghat traffic and in recent years by motor lorries.
The backwater here is extensive and deep enough to provide
anchorage for vessels below 200 tons. The port limits extend
from about 400 yards north of the Sultan’s Battery to about 150
yards south of the southern boundary pillar. The roadstead is
open, and steamers have to anchor about two miles off the shore
in five to six fathoms of water. Native craft of small draught
enter the backwater at all tides and anchor at the inner ancho-
rage, but vessels drawing 7 to 11 feet of water have to enter the
inner harbour only at high water. The bar lies about one
mile from the mouth of the rivers and carries from 7 to 9 feet
of water at low tide and is impassable during the three months
of the south-west monsoon (June to August) when the port is
closed. The Nétravati carries from 6 to 24 feet of water from
the mouth of the river to the railway bridge. The Gurpir
river is navigable at all tides as far as the pier but is liable to

shoaling and only the constant dredging of the channel has

rendered the plying of the boats to the steamers in the road-
stead possible. The dredger costs Rs. 55,000 and three wooden
barges costing Rs. 16,000 are used to carry off dredged spoil.
There is a motor launch for towing lighters and vessels from
backwater to sea and vice versa and for carrying passengers to
and from vessels in the outer anchorage. -

The present light-house was built in 1900 and carries an
acetylene light, 83 feet above high water giving white flashes
every three seconds visible for eleven miles out at sea in clear
weather. The masonry. tower is 48 feet high from the base
and is painted white. The flagstaff cousisting of lower and top
masts is 91 feet from ground level and stands near the port
office. The flagstaff was till 1898 mnear the Collector’s office
about half a furlong to the east of its present position. A Port
Conservency Board has been constituted with 12 members of
whom three are officials one of whom the Collector is President
and another the Port Officer is Vice-President.

As far back as 1852 the port carried on a flourishing trade

~with Arabia and other foreign ports. The foreign import

trade now ig only 8'5 per cent of the total and consists chiefly
of kerosene oil, manufactured metal, stationery and hardware,
machinery, provisions, seaps and.liquors and oilman-stores from
the United Kingdom ; liquors from France ; wines from Spain
and Portugal ; oilmanstores from Switzerland ; hardware from
Holland, Germany and Belgium ; wet dates from Arabia and

- Persian Gulf ports; salted fish from Gou, Mekran, Agiatic
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Turkey and Persian Gulf ports; and onions from Goa. - Large
quantities of duty-paid articles are bought by the bi-weekly
B.I.S.N. steamers from Bombay. The chief imports (coastal)
are ootton twist and yarn, piece-goods, grain, flour, chillies, sugar
and duty-paid salt from Bombay ; coconuts, gingelly-oil and
punac from Cochin by native craft; coconuts, copra and coir
from the Laccadive islands; and fish and fish products from
Malabar and other South Kanara ports. ' '

The bulk of the foreign exports consists of tiles; fish, fish-
manure, fish-guano and fish-oil to Ceylon ; coffee and spices and
cashew kernels to the United Kingdom, France, Germany and
Norway ; pulses and rice to God, Arabian and Persian Gulf
ports; Laccadive coir yarn to Bombay, Karichi and Persian
Gulf ports ; and coffee to Persia , Australia and America. The
coastwise exports are pulses, coffee, coconuts, copra, rice and
spices to Bombay and Kathidwar ports and rice to Laccadive
islands and Malabar ports. Among the exporters of coffee and
cashewnut kernels to foreign ports are four well-known
European and several Indian firms and these are also engaged
in coasting trade in arecanuts and other local produets.

The following table gives the value of the export and import
trade of this port, both foreign and inland, the Port and
Landing and Shipping dues and passenger traffic inward and
outward for particular years:— o
Landing  Passengers.

nd - Yy, . .

Toar. _ Eorglgn. L (;oaiml. - gggt Sh?_;pqn "S'F A“.i_‘

' S 8. ipping il- V-

Imporns. Exports. Imports. Exports,- dties. A e,d' od.

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs, - Rs. Rs. )

1913-14 .. 618796 8941911 62,41,662 50,89,449 17,566 20,667 7,358 7,215
1923-24 . GaLsd7 1,16,15963 97,0349 1,01,17,461. 20,647 60,120 7774 7,116
1933-34 ... 14,38,369 1,07,96,492  80,15,612 67,01,807 28,490 65,897 5,171 4,282
193435 .. 17.86.522  91,93,228 7947204 84,6327 27717  €83,083 8,047 6,917

1935-38 .. 21.90,044 1,16,55,070 77,12,819  78,40,647 83,073 . 69,208 7,451 7,087

These passengers are carried by bi-weekly steamers of the
B.LS.N. Co., between Mangalore and Bombay and vice versa.
These vessels call at several intermediate ports between
Bombay and Mangalore whereat they disembark and take in
passengers for other ports. S .

"There are two wharves. The north quay wall is 1,095 feet
long and there are two ramps and two cranes (costing
Rs. 27,000) to help in loading and unloading. The south quay
wall with 250 feet of toe wall is 1,964 feet long and has 6
ra.mps'cos'ting Rs. 54,000 to erect. Between ship and shore
run cargo boats of varying capacities (15 to 60 tons) and there
are also three motor launches. Trolly lines have been laid on
the bunder to facilitate loading and unloading. There are also
private wharves and jetties for shipment of tiles and landing of
firewood. There is a railway line connecting the port with the
main line-at Mangalore railway station. = ,

S. K.—35
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- Liast. pamgm;ph of page 256, first pa,ragra,ph of page 257,

G”‘“:_flx 4a,at paragraph.of page 259 and ﬁzrst paragraph of page 260,—

i

Ullal.

Bdldr.

Bantval,

Kadre.

Aldanad. ™ The vﬂlages are now in the Karkal taluk and the notes on them
angi,

Mudbidri
and Venur.

should go ‘under that taluk. -For a.ddltlons to them refer to
the Gazetteer of that taluk.. :

: Pa,ge 257 pamgmph 2 first sentence *-Substttute :—TUllal
population 6 865 in 1931 of whom 8,165 were Hindus, 8,058
Muhammadans and 642 Christians. There is a branch post
ofﬁce a.nd its dlsta.nce from Mangalere i8 two m1les.

Page 258, first pamagmpk——Addeor a history of the
Bairasa. VVodeyars of Karkal see notes under that v1llage in the
Karkal taluk. The site of the old fort of Ull4l is surrounded
‘by what might have been once a moat. The foundations
of numerous buildings and circular wells can still be seen
‘on’ the site. - The Bairasa chiefs had their palace here. Just
outgide the village there is a ruined basthi with its crumbling
laterite walls. The Séméswara temple, the State temple, is

~ ‘near the railway station.

: Pa,mgraplz 2, ﬁfrst linee—For™ 1256 read “ 1786 ” in
1931, ‘ :

| Pa,ra,grdph 8.—Add :—Thé population of this village in
1981 was 4,450 of whom 8,127 were Hindus, 1,027 Muham-
madans and 223 Christians.

- The high school at Bantvél is maintained by the rlch Kon-
ka.nese temple to Venkataramana there. ' Several buildings in
the village bordering the river were submerged during the floods
0f 1923 and they were rebuilt subsequently. The ‘high school,
‘though situated on an eminence, also suffered serious damage
and much money wasspent on its reconstruction by the temple
authorltles The village consists. praetmally ‘of one long street
with a few cross streets and the river being so close, it must
.always be a source of- -danger to the buildings especmlly during
heavy rains. The deputy tahsildar’s and sub-registrar’s offices
have been shifted from thls town to the adjoining village locally
known as “‘ J6dumarga.”’ . The building was newly constructed
‘by Government after the floods of 1923 and is now in cha.rge of
the Public Works Department

Pamgmph 4—Add : --Popula.tlon 5,834 in 1931. ’I‘he follow-
mg is an account of the Jogis and. thelr mutt in this wlla.ge
The niutt stands. on the top of a hill adjoining the Manjunétha
témple. - There are nine small rectangular tanks on the slope
‘of the hill between the mutt and the temple. Visitors to the
4émplg bathe in one of these tanks.before entering the temple.
Reference to a Jogi i is found in the‘annals of Tbn Batuta, the
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African traveller, who found in 1342 a Jégi living in the v 11,
island of Anjudivu oppogite Kharwér. He was leaning againgt Omar. XIX,
the wall of a temple between two idols. The traveller spoke to —
him but got no answer. He looked about to see what the J6gi
lived on. - The Jégi shouted and a coconut fell on him. Ibn
Batuta offered him money which the Jégi refused and in
return threw ten rupees or dinars at the traveller. To Ibn
Batuta’s question as to what he worshipped the Jégi looked
to the sky and then towards the west apparently meaning that
he worshipped the sun and the sea.  Like a true Moslem Ibn
Batuta claithed the Jégi as a brothier Moslem who looked to
heaven to show that he worshipped Allah and looked to the
west to show that he worshipped the mosque at Mecoa and
believed in Muhammad the Prophet. Arab merchants ruined
the temple on that island before the close of the 15th century
and even after the Hindus were forced to leave the island; a
Jégi beggar lived in a stome grotto there and ate food and
rice given him by passing ships until a very long time later.
The religion of these Jégis iscalled N4thasampraddya and
was distinct from that of the Jains and the Buddhists. Their
originator was Parswanatha, a prince of Gowdadésa or Bih4r of
the 8th century B.C. He is also called Adindtha., He got- a
few disciples and his idea was to convert Kshatriyas and others
to adopt his faith. He first took in outcastes and tried  to
elevate them. His followers matted their hair, smeared their -
bodies with ash (vibhuti), put rudrakshams on the hair, carried
chank, trisulam, etc., and went about bathing in all the holy
waters of the country. Their headquarters was Badarik4srama
but some of thém settled permanently in various parts of the
country. They called their chief god Adindtha or Lékéswara.
They also worshipped Shakti and Bairava. =~ . -
The J6gi cult became prominent under Matsyéndrandtha.
One of his disciples was Géraknith who came out of a cow-
dung heap where a childless lady to whom Matsyéndrandtha
gave vibhuti to eat threw away that »ibhuti. When the dung
heap was opened several years later on a re-visit by Mats-
yéndrandtha the boy Géraknath came out of it but he followed
Matsyérdranstha and founded the city of Gérakpir in North .
India which is a place of pilgrimage for all Jégis who
congregate there once in twelve years. The caves with arched
door-ways found in the hills of this district seem to have heen
made by the J6gis for in them have been found agnikundams,
trisulas, metal cases, tongs.and knives used by these people.
In the hill known.as Posédi-Gumpe near Kumbla, near the Jégi
mutt at Vittal and near the mutt at Kadre there are such eaves
and also at Kuta-sadri, K6téswara and Séde.. ‘ o
A queen of Malabar is said to have become a Jégi and a-
disciple of Matsyéndrandtha and she and her sons went to.one

S.K.—35-a
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of the assemblies at Ndsik. On their way they crossed the
Nétravati near Ulldl and at B6lar on the other side ef the
river the Kérala queen who was named Mangalddévi stopped
for a short time. It is said that a later Alupa king built for
Mangalddévi a temple there in her memory in 968 A.D.  When
Matsyéndranatha came to Mangalore the region around Kadre
was said to have been a dense forest. He and his followers
went to Swarna-kadri just north of the Kadre village and
stayed there. There were at one time twelve Jogi mutts in this
district though in fact only three of them survive now, the most
important of them being the Kadre mutt. The Alupa king
Kunthavaram installed in 963 A.D. an idol to Lékéswara here.
This is found in the Manjundtha temple and the image has
got a jata and not a crown. Just below the jate there is a
tiny figure of Matsyéndra. There is a rudrakshamala round
the jata and on top another idol of Matsyéndranitha. The
temple priests say that the image is that of Brahma but it is
really that of Loékéswara. Statues of Matsyéndranstha,
Kunthavarma the Alupa king and Parswanatha are found in
the Manjunitha temple at Kadre. The chiefs of the Kadre
mutt are the heads of the J6gi mutt there and they are ecalled
Réjas and there is a change in the chiefship once in twelve
years. They are first crowned according to Brahmin rites and
then in the mutt according to the Néthasampraddya. The

" Jbgis of Kadre mutt are said to live on the rent collected from

the tenants and the principal J6gi is & hereditary trustee of
the Manjunatha temple. The Jogi at Vittal has to be initiated
at the Kadre mutt. The author of Vairdgyasathakam in Sans-
krit, Bartrahari, was said to have been a Jogi himself. The
JOgIS are not bound to remain celebates which they were before
the time of Kunthavarma. This has added largely to their
followers and some of the important saints of Pandéripir such
as Gnandeo, Ekandth, S6pan and their sister Muktabal were
Néthasampraddyis or Jé bgis.

- Page 258, paragraph 6.—Add the following paragraph after
the one deahng with Gurpur:—

~ Polali,” & hamlet of Koriangala village (population
1,120 in 1931) contains an important temple dedicated to Sri
Ra]a.rageswarl Itis believed that it was about this temple
that Abdul Razaak, the Persian ambassador wrote in 1448,
His account of it is found at page 67 of Volume I and shows
that the temple was made of molten brass with four platforms
or ascents and on the highest of them was an idol of the
size of a man made all of gold with eyes composed of two
red rubies. The temple is about 200 yards from the Gurpir
river and its main shrine or garbhagriham is 20 feet by
10 and is built of brick in mud and plastered over with mortar.
It has three openings towards the east and in front of the
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central opening is a mukhamantapam about 10-feet square.
Du'ectly'behmd the central doorway which opens into this
mantapam is a huge idol of Sri R4jardjéswari in a sitting
posture. Behind the openingson the south and north are idols
of Bhadra Kéli and Subrahmanya respectively. There are
several other minor idols in this rectangular room but all of
them are made of earth and elaborately painted. Tocal people
say that the temple was at one time a very rich one but that
the idols have always been earthen. Abdul Razaak apparently
was not allowed to enter the temple. He must have observed
it at night on a festival day from the outer enclosure when the
central idol must have had a gold-plated or gilt armour when
he could easily have mistaken the idol in the blaze of lights
to be one made entirely of gold. The ceiling in the mukho-
mantapam which is of wood is covered with excellent carvings
of gods and goddesses and the roofs of both the mukhamanta-
pam and the gurbhagriham are covered with copper plates,
Within a short distance of this temple are several other temples
of less importance. The annual car festival lasts for about a
month from the Mina-Sankramana which falls on or about the
15th March, and attracts more than 10,000 people, especially in
its last few days. The droppings in the temple hundi and
other income yield about Rs. 8,000 a year. There is the usnal
pillar of lights and the dwajasthamba, both copperplated, the
latter with a metal peacock on the top, in the second enclosure.
Stone idols, a few of them broken, and all picked up from the
neighbourhood are planted in the third or outermost enclosure.
Six days before the close of the festival commences a football
tournament called the Polali Chanche which lasts for five days
ending just before the car festival day. The tournament is a
highly popular one and attracts large crowds of spectators.
About 500 persons mostly Bants take part in it. The play is
said to represent the mythological fight between the Goddess
and Demons and the car festival which follows is said to repre-
sant the victory of the Goddess.

Page 259, paragraph 1.—Add =~ Population ‘n 1981 was
8,746.

Paragraph 2.—Add :~—Population in 1931 was 5,504, The
old local chiefs were called Sévants. Their country lay
between the Mulki and Pivenje rivers and to the west of the
Chowter’s territory. Padubidriis on the north of the Mulki
river and to the south lies Kodettir, both seats of petty ancient
chieftains, The original hea.dquarters of the Sivants was
Simanthir, 2 miles to the east of Mulki. It was then shifted to
Kotekéri in Mulki and the palace lay to the east of the basthi.
There are still to be found the ruins of the old palace and-of
the bastions of the fort built by Venkatappa Néyaka in 1608,
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A temple of Hantumén, a tank and a basthi are still there

" ‘There was a final shift to Olalankai later (Halé- angadi). - The
Zpa.la.ce covered over two and a half acres and now only a part

‘of it remains and is occupied by a-representative of this old

family. TIn front ‘of it in the feld called BakkimAru are the

‘tombs of twenty" Savant chiefs which means that after the
‘S4vants removed to Olalankai, there had been twenty succes-

‘sors in it. At the'rate of 28 to 80 years for each, we can infer

‘that this change of capital was about 600 years ago. From
the 12th to-the 17th centuries Olalankai must have been
a big and - prosperous town. The following temples were
under the Séivants :—The Janirdhana temple of Simanthir,
Durga Paraméswari: temple -(or Panhcha-durgi temple) at

“Bappanidu, which is-a rich institution and receives a fasdic

of RS 900 from-Government besides owning many other proper-
ties. The origin -of this temple is thus accounted for. The
temple was covered by the waters of the Mulki river for several
years and had collapsed, but five lingams and the pedestal
remained. One day while Bappu-Beari, a Méppilla merchant
was rowing his boat it struck against the lingams; and soon after
the water. went down and the lingams were seenand Bappu-
Beari, though Muslim, built a small ‘temple for housing the
lmga.ms © So ‘the pla.ce came to be known as Bappanddu after
him. There is ‘an inseription in the front mantapam of the
temple-which states that Déva Réya I of- Vijianagar gave lands
as endowments to it in 1411,

. As a result of the Inquisition at Goa in the sixteenth
century several Hindu inhabitants arrived at the port of Mulki
and the Sévant chief gave them lands mear the fort for their
habitation and also constructed on the vacant site a temple for
their worship. - Then the pulace of Savants was at Olalankai.
This is the reason for the large number of Gauda Sirasvats
remdlng in Mulki. Their great temple to Narasimha dates
from them and is a rich institution, the idol being a present
from the Sévanta himself ; and the procession of Narasimha-
swami i¢ still being taken as far as the palace and is Worshlpped
there during the illumination festival.

| , B Puttur Taluk. T .
o Page 267 -—-For Uppmangad1 in the heaﬂ‘—line “ U"ﬁpiQ
nangadx Taluk » read * Puttar.” o .

Pa.mgmph 4. w—*Substztute i—Pauttidr and Karka.l are the only
tW0 inland taluks, the former being the I&rgesﬁ taluk in the
distriot with an area of 1,246 square miles. Ttis, in fact, the
second largest taluk in the Presude’ncy (exeludmg the excluded
areaS), only - Nandikotkdr in Kurnool having a larger aren
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(1,308 square miles). It is bounded on theeast by the State,
of Mysore and Coorg ; on the north by Kéirkal and Mangalore
taluks and Mysore; on the south by Késaragéd taluk and
Coorg; and on the west by the. Késaragéd and - Mangalore
taluks. On the north-east the summit of the ghats forms the
boundary. But on the east and south where the line of the
ghats is intercepted by great valleys the- boundary line comes
right to the foot of the hills to cross the valleys. The greatest
length of the taluk from north to south is about 50 mlles and
the greatesta breadth about 33 miles. ‘

Last pa,ra_c,raph ending in page 268. Substztute —Thé
various lines of communication- with the countries above the
ghats lie through the Puttdr taluk which is therefore better
provided with roads than might be expected of it, Seemg that
it is very sparsely popilated. These roads are :—

Miles.
Sampédje ghat road oar ... ol
Manjarabad ghat road ... ... .. 40
Kodékal ghat road o e .. 21
Jalslir-Subramanya road ,.. - ... .. 267
Puttar-Beltangadi road ... . e 22

Beltangadi-Navir-Malédi road ... = e - 16
Uppinangadi-Kulgunda-Bisli ghat road. 382

Subramanya is algo reached from the PuttGr-Jalsir section
of the Sampije ghat road by three dlﬁ'erent roads a.nd theSe
are—

- Darbe—Subramanya. ... e s e 83
Kumbra-Belldre-Ninthikal road . voo 14 miles up
, to where
it - joins
~ the pre-

vious .

“Toad.
»  Arumchinatka (a mile south of Kayu)-
NathAir road joining the previous road

- 38 miles to the west of Belldre... ... 6

. Kévu-Kothiadi road till it joins the Jala-
sir-Késaragod road = ... . .. s 12
o Kabaka—Vltta.l road = .07 159

- Kaladka-Ad kasthala (and on 1 to Kasara.god C

© road) ... ves . vee 16

) Gundla—Kulkunda.-Blsh road .. ... 14

'Dha,rmastala,—Pena,shantl—Merdal road 16

' Pan]alkatte—KanJa road .... w7
- Kadaba—Punja road. e

Kandadka—Ayyankattu (two mﬂes to the S

east of Bellare) road o e A

Vor. 11,
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omp- BIX, 1 R;?%ggo.?,t‘)& pa,mg{ra,ph\ 2, line . 5.—For “Rs. 200 : frea@

Add after the second sentence :—-This road passes through
difficult (yet beautiful) country from the point of view of road
making, as it contains numerous cuttings in laterite rock and
skirts several low-lying hills covered, as we approach the ghats,
and in the ghats with. various kinds of trees.

Line 18.—For the sentences beginning with “ The old
bridge * and “ They are both,” substitute :—The old bridge at
Beltangadi has been replaced by a fine granite and iron strue-
ture and the iron girders on the masonry at Nidgal and
Mund4ji have much improved the bridges at these two places.
These are both large bridges, the former having as many as
11 spans of 30 feet. - '

Third line from bottom.—Delete “ No. 8-A.”
Last sentenée.—:S’uibstitute‘f‘ The road from.”

Page 269, lines 1 and 2.—For * Uppinangadi ” read
“ Puttar.” ; :

Third line.—Substitute “The road from Beltangadi to
Néavtru and Malédi goes through” A

Line 5.—For * Nagore ” read *“ Navuru.”

Paragraph 2, line 1.—For ““ Uppinangadi ” read “Putttr.”

Last line.—Add “ though actually no boats are said to be
plying at this season.”

Puaragraph 3, third line.—Delete “ (salary Rs. 175).”¢

Administra- Sixth line.—For “ 279" read “184°° and strike out the
tion, rest of the sentence “and of these all but two are inhabited.”

Last two sentences.—Substitute :—There is a circle inspector
of police at Puttir in charge of the bulk of the taluk; the
northern portion of the taluk is included in the charge of the
inspector of Bantvil circle. There are six police stations in
the taluk -and eight outposts. For civil actions, the greater
part of the taluk is under the district munsif stationed at
Puttir, but several villages in the north and north-west of the
taluk are under the district munsif of Mangalore and some
villages in the west under the munsif of Késaragdd.
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Paragraph 4.—Add:—For statistics relating to population,
density, distribution among the sexes and rehglons see tables I,
V and VIII of this book.

Pa,ge 270 pamgmph 1.—Add :—The normal }and revenue
of the taluk is Rs. 4,56,169 on lands. permanently held while
the .cesses charged on land amount to Rs. 48,528 and tasdic
paid to religious institutions Rs. 11,122. TFor statistics

relating to the area under cultivation and pr1n01pa.l crops see
Table- IX in this beok.

Second 'paragraph —Add : -—The agrlcultural stcck at the
census in 1935 stood as follows :— G

Vm, 11,
Cenp. XIX,

Population,

The land.

- Bulls a.nd bullocks e 54,815 ,

- Cows - .- - 85,014
Male buﬂ‘aloes " wee oL 81,641
Cow buffaloes ... ves . 8,366
Young stock ... . 43,909
Sheep and goats ... . 4,085

~ Ploughs ...~ e 87 575 including 37 -

B ' ' iron ploughs,
Carts ‘e e e ... 1,192 excluding 79
, ' . boats, ’

Paragraph 4,— Substitute —Puttur-—-Popula.tlon 7 822 in
1931 of whom 5, 4.59 were Hindus, 1,145 Muhammadans a,nd 1,148
Christians. = It is the headquarters of a revenue- subdwlslon
and contains the revenue divisional office, the taluk office, a
post and telegraph "office and a pohce sta.tmn Its distance
from Mangalore is 81 miles. There is also a munsif’s court in
the station and a forest range office. The taluk hospital has
been taken over by Government and there are also a vetennary
gurgeon and a health inspector. Owing to the Coorg insurrec-
tion which first broke out at Bellare 16 miles south-east, troops
were st?tmned here from 1887 till thé introduction of the
mofussil police in 1860. It was in this town that the first
comoperative society in ‘the district was started and it celebrated
its silver jubilee in 1984, They also started an educational
society, collected funds for it and started a school which they
eventually handed over to the district board. The school is
situated on a hill overlookmg the town and.is reported to be
one of the best high schools in the district. There is a social
club in the station and a separate club for. Government servants.
Of the Hindu temples the one to Mahalingéswara is the oldest.
The Gauda Sirasvats have their usual Venkataramana temple
and the- Mahéméye temple and the Sarasvats the Radhakrishna
Mandir and Bhav4ni-Sankar temple. = The taluk office. occuples
the old mﬂltary hostal and the hosplta.l is also housed in an

Puttar.
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old military building. The travellers’ bungalow stands on a
small- hillock ovérlooking the bazaar street. Industrially the

. place is not very important though there were a few -looms- at

work which are unable to compete successfully with mill-made

* goods and there are two factories. where copper vessels are

Uppinangadi, =

made by Goanese and local Christians. The town lies on. the
trank road from Mangalore to Mercira via the. Sampdge - ghat.
The first Roman Catholic chureh here was built in 1830 and
there were only 12 Roman- Catholic Christian families in’ the
place. With the materials of the dismantled barracks the
present church was buils in 1854. The mission obtained lands
ot ‘darkhast and settled their converts on them. The tower of
the church was struck by lightning in 1875 and ruined. The
building again collapsed owing to faulty foundation and was
re-built in 1882. - The present church wasg built in 1916 after
pulling down that of 1882. Many of the converts belonged to
the Goudi caste ; and there is now a fairly large congregation.
The mission runs two schools in the place. ‘

Last paragraph ending in page 271.—Substitute :—
Uppinangadi—Population in 1931 was 2,271. Until 1882,
this:was the headquarters of the taluk which was named after it.
The headquarters was then changed to Puttir that year but
the taluk continued to be called after thisvillage till the end of
1927. Its distance from Mangalore is 82 miles and there is a
branch post office and a travellers’ bungalow. An old temple
which stands at the confluence of the N étravati and the Kumara-
dhéri is ‘held very sacred. The village was attacked in
1800 by the rebels Subba Rao and the Vittal Hegede but
guccessfully held by the tahsildar of Kadaba. The Jesuit mission

- built a church here in 1928 on the top of a hill ‘overlooking

Ballangadi.

the Nétravati, In the floods of 1923 the town suffered
greatlyrand— was under water. There is' an orphanage main-
tained by the Bethany Sisters in this 'place.' : S

¢
- Page 271, paragraph 2.—GSubstitute :~——Bailangadi—
Population 1,918 in 1981. - The name is derived from Kanarese
Bailu (plain) and ‘Angadi (shop). This place was once the seat
of certain local ‘chiefs called Milirs. They had authority

‘over twelve maganes around this village which included
‘among others Charmédi, Mund4ji, Ujre, Néria, Dharmasthala,

Kokkéda-and Sisila. The chiefs had four palaces of which
two ‘were at Bailangadi. Ome of these is now in ruins and

‘a small honse now 'stands on the site with a few stone steps,
“The other palace which still exists is about a mile and a half
‘away and in a field opposite to it are 15 tombs said to be

those 'of old Malar chiefs.” At a short distance from the steps

‘stand two other tombs made of fine black stone.  The other
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two. palaces are in ruins at Sisila. and Nidaga. Though
surrounded by hills and thick forests on three sides, Balla.nga,dl
was open ‘on the south side to incursions from the Coorgs who
often raided it and plundered its houses. Under the Malars
the place had about a thousand Jain houses and was noted for
its bell-metal vessels. There is a basthi to the north-west of
the palace and between it and the palace must have stood
numerous houses, all in. ruins now and over-grown with trees
and shrubs. ThlS basthi which is built entirely of stones
appeats from an inseription on one of its pillars to have been
repaired in 1611. It is not possible to give any correct
genealogy of the chiefs, but the following story about Sémala-
Dévi falso known as Sankara-De’w) ‘deserves to be recorded.
She was married to Vira Narasimha Lakshmappa, Arasu of the
Banga dynasty and both were governing the Bailangadi and-
Banga countries. During one of the annual Aunant-vrithams
which they celebrate with much pomp, Sémala-Dévi declined
to sit to the left of her husband as any Hindu wife ought to do,
to which the Arasu objected. The queen left the basthi in
anger and went to Bailangadi where she built the present
basthi in a month and performed her vritham in it. This was
too much for her husband and a ﬁght ensued in which the

Réjah was cut down by the queen’s soldiers at the head of the

steps leading to the palace. The queen was struck down. by
remorse and committed suicide and the peoplé built on. that
spot the two ‘tombs for them in fine black stone. This was
some time before' 1611 and the Banga Réjahs seem to have

Vor, i,
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repaired the basthi in that year. During the time of the Tkkéri -

Rajahs the Milars are supposed to have supphed cardamoms
to them which gave them the name of  Blakkai ™ Mdalérs.

Paragraph 3 ~—Substitute :—Bellare —Populatlon 1, 697 in
1981. Post office. The Jain Balldlas of Bellare governed
twenty villages around it. - Their family is now extinot. They
were Jains and had their palace and basthi here.. This basthi
to Adiswara still exists. Venkatappa "Néyaka, the Ikkéri
Réjah; built a fort here in 1608 A.D. It became the capital
of Amra, Sulya, P4nje and Bellare villages. ‘These were ceded
in’ Sémasékhara Nayak’s time to the Coorg Réjah Dodda

~ Virappa. Then they reverted to the local chiefs. When

Hyder came to power he gave them to the Coorg R4jah again

Bellare.

in 1768 Tippu resumed them in 1775 but they were again

ceded to Coerg by the English in 1799. These were finally
resumed - when -Coorg”was annexed by the English in 1884.

A force which left Kumbla under Colonel Jackson in that

year 0 co-operate in the invasion of Coorg from the Mysore
side was stopped by a stockade near Bellaﬁ'e There is a good

travellars’ bungalow here on'a h11]oek overlookmg the road bor

S ubrama.nya..
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Paragraph 4.—Add :—This place was once the seat of
another Jain Balldla who had a palace here, now in rums“except
fora solitary stene pillar on the site and a basthi also in ruins.
This : wag . the headquarters of a taluk in the 18th century,
but when the district came under British rule the taluk office
was shifted to Uppmangadl where it stayed until its eventual
transfer to Pattdar.in 1884, Population 1,111 in 1981. It
is 52 miles south-east of Mangalore on the Subrama.nya road.
It is now the seat of a Roman Catholic missionary who has
opened & school and an orphanage there and another a$
Subramanya A chapel was built here in 1924.

Paragra,ph 5. ——Add :=—Population 851 in 1931, The
temple is to Slsﬂeswara and stands on an island in the Sisila-
hole.

Pamgmph 6.—Add :—There is no police station at Bangad1
now. It was one of the seats of the Maldr chiefs mentioned
above N :

Pamgmph 7.—A4dd :—The Nara.s1mha, after whom the
vﬂlage undér the rock was called was one of the Brahmin
governors 6f Tuluva after the Kadamba dynasty became
extinet and his residence was in a citadel at the foot of the
rock, of Whlch no trace is visible now. The immense rock on
which the fort stands is inaccessible, except by one narrow
way and the nature of the access to the top is such that a
descent from it in face of an enemy would be as difficult as
the ascent and even a small body of men with sufficient artil-
lery can blockade a strong garrison. When a party of British
troopd called on the garrison to surrender after the fall of

. . Seringapatam, they refused and after a siege of six weekssome
mortars were brought up and the fort was bombarded for

Sabra-
manya or
Pushpagiri,

three days.  The soldiers then ran away, the commandant
poisoned, himself -and those that were captured were promptly
hanged. . Timma Néyaka who held the fort during the rebel-
lion led by Subba Rao on behalf of Futty Hyder (Tippu’s
son) escaped and eluded capture for some time. The Hegede
of ~Dharmasthala helped the besiegers and = was sultably
rewa,rded later and part of the boety was given to him. *An
old. friend: of Timma, a Nayar, recognised this rebel, though
he was disguised; at Békal and obtained the reward offered
for-. Timma’s  arrest.. The fort and the village at the
foot of the well are now deserted except for a few houses,
whose, residents do some cultivation work in its neighbourhood.

Last ;pamgmph —Substitute : —Subramanya or Pushpa-
glrz is a small village below the ghats and contained 514 inhabi-
tants in 1931. There was a police station here whxch was
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abolished, only an out post being established during the jatrain
the-temple. Being an important pilgrim centre it is connected
with Mangalore, Kisaragéd and Uppinangadi by road. The

temple js an ancient one, at least a thousand years old, judging >

from the present buildings. The place was originally called
“ Kukké ” because of the “ Kukké ” linga idol in it installed
by Parasurdma; and as the idol was in the midst. of thick
forests the pujari used to cover up the lingam with a basket or
Kukké to prevent its being tampered with (hence the name)
and then refurn to his hut. This linga is now in the inner
courtyard of the Subramanya temple, and there is a festival
in its honour on the first of Thai ending in a car procession.
The devasthanam is even now called. Kukké-Subbariya or
Subramanya-gudi and contains shrines to Subramanya or
Shanmukha, Lakshminarasimha and Umémahéswara. There
are idols of Shanmugha and Viasuki and Sésha, the last two
being serpent deities in the central shrine which is that of
Subramanya or Shanmukbha. Subramanya, the war-god and
son of Siva, 1§ said to have come and settled here with Vasuki
after destroying Térakasura as desired by Siva. The Lakshmi-
narasimha temple in which worship is personally performed
by a monk is the property of a mutt established in this place
in the 13th century by Madhwicharya and called Vishnu-
thirthacharya samasthdnam after Madhwacharya’s brother who
was the first head of the mutt. Its present head is the
thirty-third in descent and his full name is Viswagnanathirtha-
swami. The mutt buildings adjoin the temple and open into
it. The temple has a tasdic of Rs. 4,100 and receives from
offerings by devotees Rs. 8,000 a year. It owns landed
properties yielding about Rs. 3,000 annually. The principal
jatra is in November-December when there is a car-procession.
attended by nearly 12,000 pilgrims from all parts of Coorg,
Mysore, Bellary, both Kanaras and Malabar, Travancore and
Cochin, The place is inaccessible during the months of June
to October owing to incessant rains and the numerous mountain
torrents and rivers to be crossed.. There are choultries for the

convenience of pilgrims and in times of festivals thereis a -

regular service of motor buses.” In 1935 the temple commit-
tee constructed a few rest-houses for visitors from public
subscriptions. The Mysore Durbar feeds numerous pilgrims
during the fatra and the temple committee also feeds all castes
of worshippers there daily, including Muslims, Lingayats and
Christians. A form of worship in which many induige is called
mataseva or rolling on leaves on which people have taken their
food. The vow of those who desire issue consists in bathing
in the Kumaradhéri and rolling round the temple with wet-
clothes on. People suffering from leprosy and other obnoxious
diseases also come and make bkajana for 24 or 48 days oreven
months for curing themselves of these diseases. “There were

.V10I.,‘: ~Fl,
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vor. Il onee houses here for representatives of the Sringéri and Utta-
Cuar. XIX  124i mutts and & Lingdyat mutt bulldmg is still found on. ut]m

" top of the hill close by.’

The vlllage was in the first century A. D the capltal of
a certain Jain Balldla Réjah. The village was then called
Kukképatna and traces of foundations of palaces and houses
and wells and compound walls can still be seen over an
area extending to about.10 square miles around this village.
The first palace was in Ainakila village where the kings were
crowned. Kulkunda where the cattle fair is held stands near
where a later palace of the Balldla Réjahs stood and is
north-west of Subrahmanya. During the thirteenth century
Madhvécharya established a nmtt here with the help of the
Balldla and installed his brother Vishnutirtha as the head of
the mutt. He set up an image of Lakshminarasimha along
with one of Vyasa’s saligramams in a closed box or samputa.
The R4jah wanted the box which was given to him, but he was
unable to open it. A blacksmith was called in and he too could
not open it and the Balldla then directed his mahout to let the
elephant trample on the casket ; but the elephant, raising a shrill
cry went a few steps and then fell down dead. The same fate
overtook the blacksmith and the Balldla suffered great pain all
over his body. Struck down by remorse for his conduct he
returned the box to the mutt and sat in the temple praying for
mercy and an asariri (voice from the air) called out that he
would get relief from his sin if an image of his was placed in
the temple (facing the Subrahmanya. idol) and cucumber, cotton,
butter and mustard were offered to it and their sale proceeds
given over to the deity; and to this day there are devotees
who desire relief from any disease themselves offering theabove
to the Ballla idol within the temple in hopes of relief. This
Balléla’s family is now extinet. The prasadam here consists of
bits of earth taken from the ant-hill behind the Subrahmanya’s
idol. It is said to be a sovereign remedy for snake and other
poisons. The car during the festival is dragged by means of
canes and the draggers and other pilgrims cut the canes to
bits and take them home as prasadam as a cure for snake blte.
The Néga cane is a speclal kind of cane found growing in the
forests round this place ; it is a peculiar rattan of a thick kind
which has got black spots on its surface. It is said to possess.
the quality of scaring away snakes and is best used as a walk-
ing stick. The hill spirit of the locality, Hosaligamma, has
algo a niche in the temple and is worshipped by all pilgrims.
There is a spot on the other side of the stream, about half a
furlong from the temple, which- is called Adi-Sabramanyam.
It is only an ant-hill to which the temple authorities offer
WOI'Shlp daily. It is said to be the site of the ‘ongmal temp}e
and perhaps the Kuke—hngam was first there.
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Page 272, paragraph 2.—Substitute : —-Dharma,athala (46.

miles from Manga.lore) is another important place of pil grimage
with a population in 1931 of 1,440. A police outpost is located
here for the annual jatra. The temple here is to Manjunith
and the annual festival here is in November-December and
consists of putting up innumerable lights in‘and out in-the large
space round the temple. Once in twelve years there is a
festival called Nad4vali which lasts for thirteen days.

Vor. Il %
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Dharma-
sthala.

The road to Dharmasthala branches off from the Mangalore-

Chérmadi ghat road four miles to the west of Beltangadl and

was constructed by the trustee and is being kept in good repair -

by him. There are only about 200 houses and shops all told
in the village and the climate is too hot in summnier and too cold
in winter, and few people in the village are unaffected by
malaria. A dispensary supplies medicines free to. the people.
A regular service of motor. buses takes pilgrims from all parts
of the district during the festival season. The place was
originally called Kuduma but in the 15th century it ecame-to
be called Dharmasthala (or place of charity). It is a quiet
corner under the hills surrounded by thick forests and rivulets.
A Vermana Hegede (a Jain) who was chief of this place in the
distant past (so says the local legends) was visited by some
Dharma-Dévas on horseback and he accommodated thémin his
house which he vacated for the purpose. Théy were pleased
with his good mature and directed that people visiting that
place would have their hearts’ desire satisfied and that what-
ever the Hegede spoke would turn out true.. A temple was
built for these Dévas opposite the Hegede’s house. The lin

in the temple to represent them was later on brought fg
Kadre near Mangalore by the. Dévas themselves, so much so

that worship in this shrine is said to-be more efficacious than

worship at the Kadre temple. The local deity Annappa has
also got a niche in the temple and is worshipped daily. -
“The temple was visited in the 15th century by Vadirdja-

swami of the S6de mutt who bestowed on the place the  title
Dhatmasthala and the gold crown on the idol’s head is said to

have been made about that time. The management: of the’

temple  centinues in the same family; and even during the
Muhammadan occupation of the district, the temple was not
disturbed. Omne of the Hegedes of thls place Kumarayya.

helped the Hast India Company in driving the Muhammadans.

from the Jamalabdd fort, and a few of the trophies in this
struggle are still preserved in the temple, The present head.
»f the temple is Mr. Manjayya Hegede and-he has given the.
ymall village a protected water-supply at the cost of the temple.
and as usual with his predecessors affords the pilgrims ‘every.
ronvenience in this out-of-the-way place, There is a school for
shildren, a- free dispensary, a voluntary panchayat and other
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amenities which render a pilgrimage to this. place a pleasure,
The Dip6thsava (or festival of lights) is one of the most
important festivals of the district and attracts thousands of

- people from different parts of South and West India, The ecar

festival occurs in-April and lasts nine days and there is the
usual Navaratri festival in September which also lasts nine days
when sarees are freely distributed to all Brahmin women

. assembled in the temple. During the Mahanddavalis cele-

brated in honour of the Dharma-Dévas presents on a large scale
are made to pilgrims and learned men. There is a basthi near
the temple of which also the Hegede who is a Jain is the
trustee. Any person affficted in mind or body lays his case
before the Hegede in the temple pial by offering a small present
and the Hegede advises him as to what should be done.
Several people who have disputes go to the temple pay the
Hegede a fee and accept his decision ag coming from God
himself. Forthree days the pilgrims get supplies free from
the temple and to stay longer the consent of the Hegede is
required and freely given. There are about a hundred servants
working in the femple and the annual expenditure is said to be
about a lakh of rupees. The temple is Hindu and the office of
the trustee hereditary in the Hegede’s family and is excluded
from the operation of the Hindu Religious Endowments Act
being' treated as a private temple. There are several Hindu
temples in the district which are under Jain management fron
very ancient times, the Jains having been the ancient rulers o
thls part of the country.

Pamgmph §.e—~Add :—The new bridge across the Kumara
dhéri at Uppinangadi makes communication to Mangalore along
this gha,t road much easier now.

Add at the end of the chapter : —Viftal, population (ir
1931) 4,661 (3,482 Hindus, 837 Muslims, 381 Christians anc
11 Jains) was originally included in the Kéisaragdd taluk amnc
the notes on this place found at pages 249 and 250 must com:
under the Puttar taluk. To these notes add :—

It is not possible with the meagre details so far availabl
to give a conneeted hlstory of the Vittal Hegedes. In th
Hegede's palace at Vittal is preserved a copper plate which wa
on the flagstaff of the local Panchalingéswara temple. . It bear
the date 1436 A.D. and says that the gold kalasa in front o
the above temple was put ap for the cure of one of the nephew
of Siddisékara Kinjanna Kavara Domba Hegede. Anothe

" grant, dated 1719 A.D. shows that the Hegede at the time wa

Narasimha, It appears that in 1780 A.D. & swami of one c
the Udipi mutts Vidyéranya paid a visit to this place, was show
due honours and gave an endowment to the temple prior to hi
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departure. Narasimha Hegede, a devout worshipper of Pancha-
lingéswara (their family god) had on his flag the figure of
Hanumén, and was a devout worshipper of Siva and Vishnu.
“ Narasimha Hegede” was in fact the family title of those who
gucceeded to the gadi. Till the end of the reign of Déva Raya
II of Vijayanagar, the place was in a prosperous condition.
Coming to more recent times in 1768 Hyder Ali drove out
Achutha Hegede who sought refuge with the English factors
at Tellicherry, but ou the pretext of helping the latter, Achutha
visited Vittal and plundered the country. During one of such
raids, the Hegede was captured by Tippu and hanged and his
palace was burnt down. 1In 1799 during the siege of Seringa~
patam Ravi Varma came to Vittal from Tellicherry, took

possession of his territory and then went and plundered the great -

temple at Manjéshwar, the two wooden idols of Hanumén-and
Garuda which he took away being still used as lamp stands in
the Panchalingéswara temple at Vittal. This same Hegede
being doubtful if the British people would allow him to rule over
his territory revolted and assisted Subba Rao in supporting a
pretender (a natural son of Tippu) to the Mysore throne, was
seized with the other members of the family by Col. Hart at
the- instance of Sir Thomas Munroe and pensioned.  Ravi
Varma built the present palace at Vittal some time later. The
- Hegede had 18 temples under his control. The mud walls of
the fort (the palace within which was burnt -down by Tippu)
can still be seen with the bastions, and so also the main door-
way of black granite leading into the palace. To the north of
the palace stands the grave-yard where one of the ministers, a
Brahmin named Sambulinga Bhatta was buried alive for
treason. The Hegede receives an allowance of Rs. 505 from
Government and still commands respect and regard amidst the
people of the villages which originally formed part of the old
principality of Vittal. : :

- Madnur or Kavu, 85 miles north-east of Késaragéd on
the Sampéji ghat road, There is a travellers’ bungalow on the
road and an old fort known as that of the “ Mailarasu.”

e . TUdipi Taluk.

. Page 260, paragraph 2.—Substitute :—The Udipi taluk is
bounded on the north by the Coondapoor taluk, on the south by
Mangalore taluk, on the east by the Karkal taluk, and on the
west by the sea. The sea-board is about 80 miles long and
~ the greatest length from north to south may be taken as the

same, and the greatest breadth iy 16 miles. - The area of the
taluk is 857 square miles. : S

 Paragraph3,—A4dd :—At the estuary at Hangarakatta joiﬁ
a few other streams like the K6di-Holé (which skirts the coast
S.K.—36
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from’ the northern border), the Sank4di and -the Madisal-
Holés ; and at the mouth of the Udyavara river -the I_’angala.-*

) H(ﬂe and- the Kopala-nadi jein the sea from the south.

Soil,

® Poresis.

Communica-
tions.

- Pwra,gmph 4.—For the second and third sentences substz—

tute :—The eastern parts of the taluk are strewn with several

small latérite hills and valleys and there are few outcrops of

gnelss at the east and. SQuth—east as we approach the Karkal
Tuk. . , . . _ ‘

Last pamgmph — Substitute —There are onIy 4 acres of
reserved forests in this taluk as the laterite hills have been to
8 very large extent c}ea.red of serub Jungle by cultlvators.

Poage 261 pamgmph 2.— Substitute :—The taluk is fairly
wvell—served wlth roads The followin g are the more important
ones :—

_ 1. The N orhh Coast toad between Padubidri and Ma,nuru
distance 30 miles. The road is cut bythree ferries at Udyavar
Kalianptr and Mabtkal.

: 2. The Malpe- _Perdéru-Séméswar road of which 20 miles
lie within this taluk, the Swarndnadi at Puttlge being
unbridged.

3. The Brahma.var-Hebrl and Brahmavar-Perduru roads '
distance 25 miles. :

' 4. The Kéta-Gélangadi road, distance 15 miles.

: 5. The Barkur-Sankaranarayana road, dlstance in thls
taluk 8 miles. .

S N Padubldrl—Ka.rkai road of Whmh 4 ml]es are in thls
taluk ~

: 7. Tenkegrama-Slrva road dlstance 8 mlles in ﬂns taluk
Thls road joins the Yenugudde—Belmemnu road dlstance in
this taluk 16 miles. ‘

... All the above roads and a few minor omes totalhng abont

: 150 mileg are under “the district board. The seeond road is a

continuation of the Agumbé ghat road and runs in two diree-

~ tions wia Perdir and Hiriadea respectively to Malpe with

branch lines ahout 6 miles long from Perdir to Bije from
which there is water communication down the Swarnanadi with

! Hangarakatta. From Hosérn on the third road there “is s
" ‘branch road to Kokkarm from which also there is water com-

munication by another river the Sitdnadi with Hangarakatta
The road from Séméshwar at the foot of the Agumbe ghat to
Kétéshwar and Coondapoor skirts the north-eastern eorner of
the taluk as far as Haladi for a distance of about 4 miles, -

The coast road is much better uséd in this taluk than in

. the portien to the south of Mangalore, and much ~money. has

.been spent on 1ts lmprovement Several of the roads in this
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talak are good enough for through cart traffic. The old
avenues along road margins continue, and those on the old
abandoned road from Barkar to Sanka,ranaraya.na. and lea.dmg
to the Hosangadi ghat road to Bedusre still stand soine of the
trees being excellent gpecimens.

Page 252, paragraph 1, lines 3, 4 and 5 -—Delete the road
numbers.

Paragraph 8, line 2. —Delete the words “ (salary Rs. 225) ”
and add at end :—This taluk and Coondapoor have only a single
circle inspector and there are two police stations at Udipi and
Brahmavar in this taluk. There are 115 villages in the taluk
and Udipi town has been made a municipality from November
1985.

Paragraph 4.—Add :—For details as to population, density,
religions and sexes and literacy see tabular statements I, V,
VIII and XXIV in this book. :

Page 263, paragraph 1.— For details as to area and prinei-
pal crops in the taluk see Table IX i in this volume.

Paragraph 2.—Add:—The agricultural stock in this
taluk at the census of 1984-35 was as follows :— o

Bullocks e o 21,498
He-buffaloes ... A .. 28,527
Cows ... ... 85919
Bulls and heifers under four years .. 80,551
She-buiffaloes ... e . 85,754
Young buffaloes w. 2,459
Sheep and goats ce e o 1,651
Horses and ponies . I 13
Carts ... . 1,199
Ploughs e e . 28,668
"Boats ... v e 2,526

Page 264, paragraph 1.—Add :—~The names of the eight
mutts are, Séde, Kéniyir, Puttigé, Krishnapir, Sirir, Palim4r,
Péjawar and Admar. These represent the chief villages of the
mutts concerned, S6de alone among them being near Sirsi in
North Kanara and the rest in this district. Kaniyar is in
Puttir taluk, Krishndptr near Stratkal and Péjawar are in
Mangalore taluk and the headquarters of the remaining four
mutts lie in Udipi taluk. All the mutts have their quarters in
the temple square at Udipi and their heads reside there for
part of the time, unless they are out on tour in other districts

" 8,K.—387
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’Voz. . or. provmces The d1fferent idols presanted by Madhvacharya

OHA}’_X_IX to and in the possessmn of these mutts are given below :—
© . Kéniyar mutt «. Naragimhamirthi:
Péjawar mutt ... Vittala.
~ Admér mutt . ... Kéliyamardana Krlshna
- Palimér mutt oo~ weo Sri Réma.
Krishndptr mutt ... Sri Krighna.
Puttigé and Sirdr ... ... Vittala,

w0 0 Sode mutt L. ..... . ... Bhuvaraha.

- The Krishna temple is' situated in the market place in the
centre of the town and enshrines the stone idol of Sri Krishna
obtained by Madhvacharya from a boat which escaped wreck-
ing on the coast at Malpe. The few inseriptions in the temple
(which was built in the 12th century) relate only to Vijaya-
nagar times. The central shrine stands like most west coast
temples, on a stone paved courtyard surrounded by lofty
modern buildings arranged in a quadrangle with a doorway on-
the east. There is a picturesque stone-built tank in front

- with a pretty little stone mantapam in the centre round which
the metal image is taken on a float during festivals. The
stone idol in the temple faces west and the outer buildings
inelude kitchen, dining halls, store room, a go-shala or cowshed
and a cemetery for the swamis of the mutts who die here ; and
in the yard behind the kitchen is a gigantic mound of fire-
wood a,rranged in the form of a car which is expected to last
only six months.  All Brahmiuns are fed in the temple and also
the boys attending the Sanskrit College in the town. Just
outside on ‘the west and surrounded by petty bazaars is the
Ananthéswara temple in front of which is a tall monolithic
pillar. The two inscriptions found at the entrance to this
temple relate to Vijayanagar times and it was in this temple
that Madhvacharya learned his lessons from Achuthapréksha.
To the east is the Chandramouléswara temple standing on a
lower level. It is said to have been the bed of a tank once
and the town gets its name from the idol here which means
Iswara with the moon ; and Udupa is the Sanskrit equivalent
for moon. The Sanskrlt College 18 held here. 'The local
quarters of the eight mutts are located in the street close by
these two Siva temples. The pujaries in these temples-are
Madhvas. : - '

- The population of Udipi in 1931 was 14,833 of whom 1,907
were Christians and 937 Muslims and the place has been made
a ‘municipality in 1935. Four miles from Udipi on the road to
Karkal is a plateau formed of laterite rocks on whieh a model
village is under construction, to form a suburb of Udipi.
From the plateau an excellent view is had of the sea on the
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west and the green valleys all round. The Kanara Land In-
vestments, Litd., Udipi, have acquired the area and plotted it
into sites for houses, bazaars, schools and places for recreation,
and for a small sanatorium across the high road, in' all about
two hundred buildings. The chief source of income would be
a large deposit of clay over an extent of 40 acres of land under
the hill which is being exploited for a tile factory that has
since been built close under the platean and has started work.
In the factory, all kinds of roofing, flooring, ceiling and ridge
tiles are made and supplied to villages in Udipi and Kéarkal
taluks. A large tank has been dug near the factory to supply
water to the area and to the factory, so that while Udipi has
to rely on wells alome, its suburb will enjoy a pipe-water
supply. The whole locality will also be lighted with electri-
city from the factory. The residential sites have been let out
on permanent lease and there is said to be a good demand. for
them, especially from retired officials and several houses have
already sprung up. What was thus a few months ago a bleak
hill with barren slopes shows promise of developing into a busy
place with a tile factory, a tubercular sanatorium and decent
houses for setflers. The sanatorium is the personal gift to the
colony by Dr. Midhava Pai, an enterprising doctor of Udipi.
- The Kanara Industrial and Banking Syndicate established in
1925 and having branches all over the two Kanaras, Malabar,
Bellary, Mysore, Belgaum and Dhirwir and a total work-
ing capital of about 16 lakhs, has its headquarters at Udipi.
Besides regular banking it has a department for managing the
estates of absentee landlords. |

Belle, seven miles south east of Udipi, population 2,454
in 1931 is also known as Pdjakakshétra and is reputed to have
been the birth place of Sri Madhvéichirya though Kalianpiir,
a village near Brahmavar to the north of Udipi also claims the
honour. The house where the Achérya was born is called
mudu mutt where an image of his has been set up by the
Séde mutt swami 500 years ago and is worshipped. The
swami of the Kaniyir mutt is said to be in the direct line .of
succession from the Achédrya and holds charge of the build-
ings and mutts in Belle. Certain spots are still shown in and
about Belle as places where the Achirya as a young boy
exhibited his divine powers, e.g., his jumping from a hill at the
call of his mother and killing a snake that was the terror of

Voz. IT;
Cuae. XIX,

L

Belle.
Madhva-
charya.
(1190-1278
A.D.).

the village. There is a fine tank at the back of the Achérya’s

ancestral houge which is considered holy. The hoy’s father
Madhyagéha was a tenant under a Bant whose family name
was Kakra and the family is still extant. :

_ Madhvéchérya was born of poor parents in 1199 A.D.
His father Madhyagéha Bhatta was a Vedic scholar and his
‘mother Védavati or Rénuka, a lady of great piety and learning.

S.K.—87-a
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The boy whe was called Vasndéva in his youth, finished his
schooling in his ninth year and then began learning the Upani-
shads under Achutha-Préksha, a follower of the Sankardchirya
school, who was then in the Anantéswara temple at Udipi.
Visudéva was anxious to become a sanyasi and renounce the
world, but being the only son of his parents he could not. So
he waited till his twelfth year when his brother was born. He
was ordained a sanyasi by his preceptor Achutha-Préksha and
got the name of Parnapragna. He continued to study the
various commentaries on the Védas under Achutha-Préksha,
but he did not accept Sankardchérya’s Adwaitism or the
doctrine of Absolute Monism and preached what is called
Dwaita or Dualism. The district was then under Hoysala
Balldla King Bitti Déva who had been turned Vaishnavite by
the great religious reformer Réménujachdrya and was named
Vishnuvardhana. Pdrnapragna was installed by Achutha-
Préksha ag his successor in the Sankaricharya’s muttunder the
title of Anandatirtha but the latter propagated his new ideas
and had discussions on his philosophy of Dualism with various
scholars and convinced them by his arguments. He then
started on a tour all over India to popularise his philosophy.
He first went to Kumbla whose king Jayasimha received him
with "great honour and from thence south to Travancore
where he secured several disciples to his faith. He met
Vidyasankara, the head of the Sringéri mutt, with whom he
‘had long debates and. showed his scholarship and then pro-
ceeded to Raméswaram and Srirangam, finally returning to
Udipi. He then started on a tour in North Indig as far as
Badarikésrama where he wrote his Gita-Béshyam, explaining
the various inner meanings of the Gita in the light of his
philosophy. Accompanied by his disciples Satyatirtha and
others he proceeded to Badarindriyana and completed his Gita-
Rahasyam and taught it to his disciples. The remaining coun-
tries visited by him are Orissa and Bengal (Jagannith). On
his way back he converted an Adwaita pandit named Sébhansa
Bhatta in the Andhra country, naming him Padmanibha-
Bhatta and returned to Udipi. ¢

Onoce while sitting’ on the beach surrounded by his dis-
ciples after a'sea bath at Malpe he heard the distressed cries of
people in a boat about to flounder, The Achirya waved his
cloth, and the “boat safely reached shore. He accepted from
the men in the boat some balls of gopichandana which they had
brought from Dwéraka. One of the balls slipped and broke on
the beach at Ola-bandéswara, and it was found to contain a
stone idol of Balardma ; and the temple to that idol was built

not far from the sea,-shore. Another ball was found to con-

tain an image of Krishna with a churner or mathu in one hand
and its rope in another. Madvacharya was so pleased with it
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that he took it to Udipi, washed it in the Mddhavasarévara and
built a temple on its bank and installed it there. Thig is the

beginiting of the great temple at Udipi. Then he appointed

the heads of eight mutts to look after the worship of that idol
by turns. The names of these mutts have been given above.
The Achirya went again to Badarikdsrama, met several ascetics
or rishis there and composed other phllosophlcal works. The
rishis presented him with eight saligramams and he then pro-
ceeded to several holy places in North India and returned to

Udipi »ia Goa where he converted many Gauda Siragvat
families to his faith.

He next visited his birth place Belle on hearmg of the death
of his parents and stayed there for sometime and after a year
proceeded to Kanwathirtha near Manjéshwar, where he ordained
his younger brother a samyasi and named him Vishnutirtha
and four others (Padmanébha, Narahari, Madhwa and Akshéba)
whom he directed to succeed him as the head of his mutt. He
proceeded to Subramanya where he established a mutt of
which he made his brother Vishnutirtha the head. His disci-
ple Narahari went to Kalinga and stayed there for twelve years
in the court of its king from whom he brought idols of Réma
and Sita and presented them to Madhvéichérya. These idols
were handed over to Padmandbha-tirtha the head of the
Palimar mutt where they still are. Madhvacharya lived to a
good old age, 79 years, and an image of him is found in the
southern panel of the garbhagriha of the Krishna temple at
Udipi. At Belle, a beautiful idol of Madhvichirya has been
installed for worship by the Kéniyar mutt, which represents the
family of the Acha.rya, The two Brahmin Balldlas of Udipi
taluk still possess in their houses idols presented by Madhva-
chirya or his immediate successors, and before the head of any
mutt asgumes management of the Krishna temple, he goes and
worships the Lakshmindrdyana idol in their possessmn before
proceeding to his Pariydya.

Page 264, paragraph 2.—The notes under this v1llage must
go under K4rkal taluk. .

Page 265, paragraph 1.~—Add: —The place is called Bérkar or
Bar&kanyapura. or the town of twelve vu'gms The village pro-
per includes four hamlets, Mudikéri, K6tékéri, Chowlikére and
Monigarkéri and extends into the revenue villages of Kachiiru,
Hos4la, Hanehalli and Héradi. Barkir contains several Hindu
temples which possess a number of insoriptions of consmlera.ble
historical value and there are also a few ruined Jain monu-
ments of less 1mportance The inscriptions were copied in 1901
and are mentioned in the Government Epigraphist’s Report for
that year. The earliest inscriptions record the npame of some

Vor. IL
Crar, XIX.

Kérkal, .

Barkar,



- Vorn, H,
CHAP. XIXt

—

402

of the later Alupa kings and range from the 12th to 14th cen-
turies. Thereare records of the Hoysala king Vira Balldla and
of the kings of the first, second and third Vijayanagara®dynas-
ties on whose behalf the two provinces of Barkdr and Manga-
lore were administered by local officers until 1565 when
Vijayanagar was sacked and taken by Muhammadans, Bérkir
was the local capital of the Hoysala Balldlas and was held for
them by one of the Humcha families who were Jains and
afterwards by the Bhairasa Wodeyars of Karkal., On the
conversion of the Hoysala king Vishnuvardhana from Jainism,
the local rulers became independent and Bhitala Pandya whose
origin is uncertain apparently held this place and was a very
powerful ruler. The local chiefs had retained their independ-
ence at Barkdr till 1386 when the kingdom was made over to
Harihara I of Vijayanagar who appointed a local governor and
built the fort, the ruins of which are still to be seen and the
stone revetted tank on the site of this fort is still in an excel-
lent state of preservation.

Inscriptions are found in the temples of Sémésvara and
Gépalakrishna at Mudakéri, Ganésa at Chaulikéri, Sémanathes-
vara at Manigarkéri, Panchalingésvara at Kotakéri and on
pillars and slabs set up in many private houses. The above
temples are maintained in good repair. Many of the inscribed
stones have been misused in repairing the temple and their
inseriptions have been lost; and several inscribed stones have
been lost or used in building walls or in flooring houses or in

‘putting uprevetments of house walls, The Ganésa temple at

Chaulikéri has a long pillared verandah pierced with two small

‘doorways and has a curious roof composed of huge over-lapping

stone slabs arranged like wooden planks and is obviously

‘a stone copy of a wooden model. The roof is a remarkable
‘plece of stone construction. Standing outside the Pancha-
‘lingésvara temple are three interesting Sati memorials which

take the form of a stone post from the side of which projects
a woman’s right hand and arm, the latter being hent up at

- right angles to the elbow. The arm is life size and the post is

decorated with the usnal Sati ornaments. There are no
ingeriptions on them and the local tradition about them is that

“each of these stones stands for a hundred completed Hindu

temples in the place. There is no reason why it should be so.
The pointing of the right hand upwards and the carving of the
figures of a husband and wife in the pillar itself probably
represent the right way to heaven as they call it for a wife,

‘that is by her immolating herself on her hushand’s funeral

pyre. Of Harihara’s fort, the site remains marked by a long
embankment enclosing a large space with the tank referred to
above. The fort walls were built with laterite stones, but these

‘have mostly been removed and used in the building of houses




e

403 .

in "and near the' village. . The inscriptiong relate. mostly to
Vijayanagar times and give the names of the viceroys.and their
dates: nd record endowments of various kinds to.the temples
People are not allowed to ‘dig in certain sites without permission
for numerous finds of ‘treasures. have been known: to have
ocourred though only afew were reported to the authorities.
The old town must have been very extensive, for foundations of
houses and old wells have been discovered . over a wide area.

The Jain monuments are disappointing. Only three small
groups remain, but none of them.is of much archaelogwal
interest. The best of these known as Kathale-Basthi consists of
two small ruined stone-built Jain mandapas free from all orna-
ment or carving, a little Siva temple contammg a linga and 'a
small stone-built temple, oblong on plan, and’ facing the east.
The stone floor of the shrine chamber has been dug up by trea-
sure-seekers and the stone pedestal on which the idol'once stood
thrown out into the front hall, so thete is nothing to prove that
it is a Jain monument and the style of the doorkeepers seems to
indicate that it is a Vishnu temple. In the other two ruined
basthis, the writer moticed long blocks of stone with holes to
the number of 24, indicating that they were pedestals on which
 the idols of all the T1rthankaras were put up and Worshlpped

Page 266, paragraph 1.—Add .———Populatlon in 1931 of the
revenue village Tonse Hast was 4,590 of whom 1,014 were
Christians. It is very unlikely that Madhvacharya was born
here, for the other village Belle or Pijakakshétra has been
recognized by his followers as the place where the Achirya was
born and contains several items of evidence to confirm it.
There are two Roman Catholie churches in the village, the
Milagiris and the Rosario. The former was built about the
same time as the church of that name at Mangalore in 1678*
and it would appear that under a treaty of the Portuguese with
queen Chennamméji (1671~1697), the former were allowed
to build churches at this among other places. This church was
destroyed by Tippu but was re-built in 1806. It is one of the
richést churches in the district and as'a result of its adhesion
to the Padraodo, the dissenters built another church, the
Rosario, close by. The latter church was later pulled down and
rebuilt a.bout a mile away. There are six temples in the Vllla.ge
of which the Shrf Mahalingéshwar temple built by one
Kencbaya of the Kshatriya community is an ancient one.
Kalianpiir promises to become a great industrial centre in the
district and a sugar factory is bemg established here.

Pamgmph 2.—Add :—The name of the revenue vﬂla;gg is
Badugabettu and its population in 1931 was 1,716. The village

¥ The:Anamario de Goa states that this church was built in 1700 A D, -
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was apparently a large one with many basthis. Two inserip-

XIX. tions state that Narasimha II of Vijayanagar gave in 1490 and

1494 lands to Halléra-basthi here. The Brahmin Balldla was
presented by Madhvichérys with an idol of Lakshminardyana
which is installed in a shrine which the swamis visit before
Pariydya. ‘ '

Paragraph 4—Add .—Population had risen in 1981 to 1,462,
all Hindus.

. Paragraph 5.—Add -—Population in 1931 was 5,073, the
name of the‘revenue village being Nadusélu. It has got the
largest Brahmin population in the taluk after Udipi—mostly
Shivallis. ErmAl just north of this village contains a temple
to Janidrd4dna the idol in which is believed to be one of the
three obtained by MadhvAcharya from the boat. The family
of the boatman who carried the idols belonged to this village
and was called Pente-mané and his descendants are still to be
found here. ‘ .

Paragraphs 6, 9 and 11 of page 266 and paragraph I of
page 267 :—The villages of Varanga, Mudradi, Nellikdr and
Stada are now in the Karkal taluk and the notes on them should
be read under that taluk,

Paragraph 7.—Add -—The migané includes villages of
Katpadi, Yennugudde and Udyévara. : '

Last paragraph.—Add :—The name of the revenue village is
Ambalapidi and its population in 1931 was 1,286. It containg
the family residence of the Brahmin Balldla. Sri Vadirija-
swimi presented the Balldla with an idol of Anjanéya
(Hanumén) and before accepting the management of the Sri
Krishna temple, each of the eight swdmis go and worship this
idol and then attend the Pariydya. .

Page 267, paragraph 2.—Substitute :—The revenue village
ig called Péjamangiru, population 1,858 in 1981 of whom 39
are Jaing and Stral is one of its hamlets. The Tol4r chiefs who
had their capital at Saral reigned over the greater part, of
Udipi and Coondapoor taluks and belonged to the same royal
family as the Chowters of Mudbidri. The village is six miles
from Barkdr and stands on a branch of the Sitanadi not far
from Kokkarné on that river which was one of their ports.
The present palace in the village was built in the 15th century
and its site covers three acres. This is the only palace of any
Jaip chief in a fair state of preservation (except the Chowter’s
at Mudbidri). There is a courtyard measuring two acres in
front of the building behind which is a smaller yard which
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contains the main entrance. Passing through we come to
another yard about 1% acres in extent. - On the east of it there
is a squhre hall where the Télar held his court. To the south
of the palace in the Bakkiméru field, there is a tower house
from which the royal family witnessed the buffalo race and the
Télar reviewed his troops. The coronation hall faces east and
is known as Bannada-Chavadi or the painted hall in the centre
of which stood the throne. To the south of it is a room in
which the religious festivities during Navarathri were conducted
and to the north a similar room for the worship of Sarada, the
zenana and bedrooms being placed to the east of the hall
There is also the family basthi for the worship of goddess
Padmgvati. The palace contains several ornate pieces of
sculpture.

The old palace stood to the east of the present one and
about quarter of a mile from the latter and covered about 5
acres and is now overgrown with jungle. There are here and
there heaps of stones from the palace buildings around a small
Amman temple now in ruins and cerfain periodical festivities
still take place in this temple. To the west of the present
palace was another at Thotthadi and a fortress, both now in
ruins and overgrown with jungle. The Mahadeva temple lies
to the north-west of the palace and is built entirely of black
stones, and from the four corner ends of the roof hang chains
made of stones and only a few links in them are still left. The
temple car is a big one and is of the same size as the one in the
temple at Ma,nJeshwar There was yet another palace at
Kenj6re, now in ruins and the site is overgrown with. Jungle

The temples of Pademata, Nildwar, Perdiiru, Sankara—
niriayana and Basrir were under the control of these chiefs who
had given large grants of land and jewels and armour to them
and the two latter still bear the names of the Télars that
presented them. There are three copper-plate inseriptions in
the pa.]a.ce, in one of which it is recorded that Mahalinga Télar
was chief in 1688, in another that Madana Dévi was chief in
1691 *and in the third that Cheluvamma Dévi Tolar was
governing the country in 1715.

During the Portuguese invasion of the Kanara coast, the
Té6lars fought them valiantly and repulsed their earlier attempts
to open settlements. In 1569 the Portuguese landed at
Barsalére (Basrdir) with a large army and occupied the fort
through the traitorous conduct of the Killédar of the fort.
Baindiir and Halligéri had by then gone into the possession of
the Sultan of BijapGr. The Portuguese army plundered the
‘town. - The Télar summoned the chief of Hosangadi, Honnéya-
Kambli, and both prepared for war in which the Perdiru chief

'joined' with a large army. A sanguinary battle was fought in

Vou. II.
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which both sides lost heavily in men, Kambli being also killed,
and the Portuguese were forced to retire to their ships-leaving
behind guns and ammunition. The Portuguese again &ttacked
Basrir some time later and captured it. The Télar and Kambli
kings with an army of 11,000 men went to war, but were
defeated, whereupon they agreed to pay a subsidy and allowed
the Portuguese to build a fort of their own at Basrir.

In 1571 the Portuguese fortified the fort of Basrtr and
entered into a treaty with the Télar. On the conquest of the
district by Venkatappa Néyaka of Ikkéri in 1608, the Télar
agreed to pay him tribute, and forts were built at various
places including Bérkfr and Kalianptr. In 1652 the forts at
Coondapoor and Gangdli were bailt for the safety of Sivappa
Niyaka’s territory. In 1742 Basavappa Nayaka of Ikkéri
built with the help of the Télar forts at Dariabahadur-Ghur
near Udipi, Tonse near Kalianptr and Bennagiri near Coonda-
poor. The Tolars were in a very prosperous condition until
Hyder Ali overran the district. The Télars celebrate their
coronations in the palace and the Maharnavami and Vijia~
Yatre festivals during the Navardthri as in the past.

Paragraph 8.—Add :—The name of the revenue village is
Kodaviru and with its population (in 1931 ) 6,956 was the second
most populous place in the taluk after Ud1p1 Pishing and
fish-curing are important industries in the place and its port
has a busy coastal trade with ports in Madras and Bombay
Presidencies. The idol of Balardma in the temple has six
faces, and the surmise is that it was perhaps a temple to
Subrahmanya (or Shanmukha the six-faced) which has been
named Balardma in the time of Madhvéichirya. Basavappa
Nayaka of Ikkéri built the fort at Dharia Bahadur-Ghur island
and another at Kap which he called Manéhara-Gada. The
Ananteswara temple is said to have been originally a Jain
basthi to Ananthanétha and was established during the time of

Sankardchdrya; and the Manasthambam in front of the old
‘basthi is still there and is evidence of the temple opposite

having been dJain. The Nidambuar Ballala had jurisdictio’n
over this village.

The port known also as Da.rla-Baha,dur-G'rhur a,fter the
rocky island opposite the bar, is situated at the mouth of the
Malpe or Udydvar river and lies three miles due west of
Udipi town. It possesses a great natural advantage in that
there is shelter for vessels from the three rocky islands west
of it and within a distance of a mile and a half from the
shore. These islands lie in the form of a semi-circle and are
almost parallel to the mainland. The northernmost island is
called Daria-Bahaddr-Ghur, the middle one or Darla-G‘radara.—

- Kallu contains the ruins of an old cannon and a fort, and the
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gouthernmost island is named Karé-Illada-Kallu; and the sea  Vou.IL
between them and the shore is a safe anchorage for vesgels CHaP- XIX.
during 8torms and rough weather,

2

The Malpe river has a bar at its mouth, About 50 years
ago the river joined the sea in front of the present Sea
Customs house. The bar since then gradually shifted towards
the south and the portion of the river in front of the Sea
Customs house has silted up, forining a vast stretch of sand.
Prior to 1933 there were two channels at the bar, one facing
north-west and the other facmg gouth-west. Owlng to the
heavy floods in the Malpe river daring that year, the south bar
channel shoaled up considerably and later on the channel was
completely closed forming a sand bank in its place. There is
now only one channel at the bar facing more or less north-
west with about 23 to 3 feet of water at low tide.

As the bar is shallow only vessels drawing less than 6 feet
of water can enter the backwater at favourable tides.
Vessels of larger tonnage anchor out in the sea opposite the
bar. The river is navigable to small cargo boats for about 6
miles during high tide.

Steamers of the B.LLS.N. Co., Bombay, anchor in the sea
opposwe the Sea Customs house and the northernmost island.
There is no fishing craft in this port. There is a port light
situated in Daria-Bahadur-Ghur and it consists of a masonry
tower with a fixed white Dioptrie light of the sixth order
which is visible in clear weather from 6 to 8 miles and is of
great use for vessels at sea. There is also a ﬁag staff of iron
girder with a bamboo pole tied at its top near the light house
tower. This is used for communication between light house
and shore by means of private code signals. There is a flag
staff in the Port Office compound, about 35 feet high from the
ground. This is used for hoisting flags to controel the boat
traffic and to give warning of approaching storms. There are
no signalling arrangements here for communieation between
ship and shore.

The port does not possess any extensive water communica-
tion with the interior. The bulk of the ecargo imported and
that intended for shipment has to be transported from and to
the tanding place by means of carts. The long stretch of sand
and a branch of the river between the landing place and the
bazaar were a great obstruction to passengers and carts some
years ago until the district board constructed in 1915 a cause-
way 980 feet long and 17 feet wide and a culvert. A new
granite road about 550 feet long and 17 feet wide from the
junction of this road up to the present landing place was con-
structed from the Malpe Landing and Shipping Fund in 1932
and now cargo landed from hoats is being carted from the
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landing place: “to the Malpe bazaar and fo Udlpl without
difficulty.

There is 2 Customs Collector and a Landing and Shipping
Fees Committee of eight members. The bulk of the trade is
coastal and there are two Government fish-curing yards, one at
Malpe and the other at Udydvar, two miles to the south. The
port’s trade consists of exports in fish and fish products (fish
manure, guano and fish oil), ginger and sweet potatoes, and
coir in small quantities. The chief imports are salt, grains
and  pulse, sugar, oil-seeds, hardware and other metals, oil-
cakes, rice, medicines, cement and coconut-oil. The trade is
with Mangalore, Cochin, Ceylon, Mormgoa, Karichi and
Bombay. Vessels of 800 tons and coasting steamers of
B.I.S.N. Co., call during working season. _

Year. Imports, Exports,

RS, Ra,
1919-20 . 14,84,086 13,65,828
192425 .. 1648257 7,41,201
1929-30 .. 1966427 8,67,129
1934-35 . 1508595 5,05,597
1935-86 14 43 856 6,07,726

Port dues collected in 1934-35 and 1935-36 amounted to .

Rs. 821-3-6 and 1,785 and Landing. ard Shipping dues

Rs. 5,156 and 3,176 respectlvely

The Commonwealth Trust tile factory is the only long-
standing firm at the port: and there are also some local
merchants and a few from Malabar dealing in fish business
at Malpe. Merchants who deal in general merchandise and
other importers of cargo reside in Udipi. There are 46 cargo
boats, mostly of 25 tons generally engaged in landing and
shipping operations of passengers and cargo from steamers and

‘native crafts. Sometimes they ply between Malpe and South

Kanara ports. Passenger traffic by bi-weekly service of the
B.I.S.N. Co., run regularly between Mangalore and Bombay.
Traffie is heavy between Bombay and intermediate ports includ-

ing Mormgoa. 6,000 passengers embark and disembark

annually. There are four wharves for landing and shipping,

but no jetties. 7,251 passengers sailed from and 6,581
arrived at the port in 1935-86.

Add at the end of the chapter the following :—Perduru,
popula.tlon 4,519 in 1931, i8 a fairly large village on the Udlpl-

‘Séméswar road and twelve miles from Udipi. The village is

famous for its Sri Ananthapadmandbha temple which receives
a tasdic of Rs. 1,800 and has landed properties for which it
pays a kist of nearly Rs. 8,000. The temple has therefore
considerable income and bemg an ancient one (built by the
chiefs of Barkdr) is much crowded with pilgrims during the



409

annual jatra in March. The temple helps financially an element-

ary school situated on the bank of a fine stone-revetted tank
attached to the temple. The village has considerable export
trade in paddy. The river Swarnédnadi which crosses the road
to Udipi about three miles down at Puttigé village has not
been bridged and has to be crossed by a ferry even in the dry
months. : o e

Kota (population 1,419 in 1931) is the northernmost village
of the taluk and gives its name to a section of Tulu Brahmins.
They originally inhabited fourteen villages round it,and unlike
the other Brahmins, owed no allegiance to any mutt. Their
chief place is Saligrdma two miles to the south of Kéta where
there i8 a temple to Naragimha-déva, whose presiding deity they
call their god amd guru. Originally these villages sent two
muktessors to their caste assembly which decided questions
regarding breaches of discipline among the members of the
community. The village gets its name from Kita or assembly
which was held in it. These Brahmins are now spread over
several villages in and out of the district, and some of them
keep what are called Udipi or Shivalli hotels in various parts of
South India. There is in this village a Durga temple to
Amrutéswari, known as mother, its children being represented
by numerous stones-in the compound (which are said to be
growing) and the pwjaris are Jégis. This is really the goddess

of smallpox and. is resorted to by, or on behalf, of sufferers from

this and from similar ailments and sacrifices of fowls, goats,
and offerings of eggs and toddy are made here.

Udyavar (the ancient Udayépura) population 6,206 in
1081 is an important village 8 miles to the south of Udipi and
contains the earliest monuments discovered in this district.
These consist of a number of stone pillars bearing ancient
Kanarese inseriptions recording the names of certain Alupa.
kings and dating back to the 7th century A.D. Ten of these
pillars are in the courtyard of the Sambukallu Bhairava temple
and two others in the house of a R4ghavéndra-bhatta, opposite
a pickuresque Ganésa temple surrounded by cultivated fields
and palm trees and three furlongs from the Bhairava temple.

The inseriptions were copied in 1901. The names of the early

Alupa kings Ranasigara, Prithivisdgara and Vijayiditya are
mentioned. The name of Kavi, a later Alupa with a surname
- Bhuja-bala is also found in the inscriptions here and at Barkar
(1118 to 1156 A.D.). The Bhairava temple is a small village
shrine facing the road. Theidols here are of wood and gaudily
painted and represent the three Sakshi goddesses.- Except for
the inseribed pillats in the compound, there is nothing ancient
about the temple. The palace of the-old Alupa kings stood on
a gite about 2 furlongs from the Ganésa temple, which perhaps

Vo, 1I.
Cusre. XIX,

Kéta.

Udyévar,



